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CHINA BCT PHARMACY GROUP, INC.
Quarterly Report

June 30, 2013

1) Name of the issuer and its predecessors (if any)

In answering this item, please also provide any names used by predecessor entities in the past five years and the dates of the name
changes.

China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc., formerly known as China Baicaotang Medicine Limited and Purden Lake Resource Corp.

The Company was originally incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 30, 2006 under the name Purden Lake Resource
Corp. to engage in the acquisition, exploration and development of natural resource properties. The Company ceased our operations
because it had not commenced any exploration activities, and as a result prior to December 30, 2009 the Company was a “blank
check” company with nominal assets. On December 24, 2009, the Company changed its name to China Baicaotang Medicine Limited
and then to China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc. on March 25, 2010.

2) Address of the issuer’s principal executive offices

Company Headquarters
Address 1: No. 102, Chengzhan Road, Liuzhou City, Guangxi Province, P.R.C
Address 2:
Address 3:
Phone: 86 (772) 363 8318
Email: z_shelly@hotmail.com
Website(s):

3) Security Information

Trading Symbol: CNBI
Exact title and class of securities outstanding: Common Stock
CUSIP: 16949J108
Par or Stated Value: $0.001
Total shares authorized: 150,000,000 as of: August 14, 2013
Total shares outstanding: 38,154,340 as of: August 14, 2013

Additional class of securities (if necessary):
Trading Symbol: CNBI
Exact title and class of securities outstanding: Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock
CUSIP: 16949J108
Par or Stated Value: $0.001
Total shares authorized: 20,000,000 as of: August 14, 2013
Total shares outstanding: 9,375,000 as of: August 14, 2013

Transfer Agent
Name: Empire Stock Transfer

Address 1: 1859 Whitney Mesa Dr.,
Address 2: Henderson, NV 89014
Phone: 702.818.5898

Is the Transfer Agent registered under the Exchange Act?* Yes: No:

4) Issuance History

The following events resulted in changes in total shares outstanding by the Company in the past two fiscal years and any interim
period:



Page 2 of 49

On January 18, 2011, the Company entered into a Series A Convertible Preferred Shares Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase
Agreement”) with Milestone Longcheng Limited (“Milestone”) pursuant to which Milestone at February 28, 2011 purchased
9,375,000 shares of the Company’s Series A Convertible Preferred Shares, par value $.001 per share (the “Preferred Shares”), for
an aggregate purchase price of $30,000,000. The Preferred Shares carry an annual dividend of 5% and are convertible initially
into an equal number of shares of our Common Stock at an initial conversion price of $3.20 per share.

A. The nature of each offering (e.g., Securities Act Rule 504, intrastate, etc.):

 Private placement by accredited investor under Rule 501(a) of Regulation D

B. Any jurisdictions where the offering was registered or qualified:

 None.

C. The number of shares offered:

 9,375,000 shares of the Company’s Series A Convertible Preferred Shares

D. The number of shares sold:

 9,375,000 shares of the Company’s Series A Convertible Preferred Shares

E. The price at which the shares were offered, and the amount actually paid to the issuer:

 $3.20 per share for an aggregate purchase price paid to the issuer of $30,000,000

F. The trading status of the shares:

 The unregistered shares continue to be held by the purchaser.

G. Whether the certificates or other documents that evidence the shares contain a legend (1) stating that the shares have not been
registered under the Securities Act and (2) setting forth or referring to the restrictions on transferability and sale of the shares
under the Securities Act:

 Under section 4.7 of the Purchase Agreement, the shares contain a stating that they have not been registered under the
Securities Ace and referencing the restrictions on transferability and sale of the shares under the Securities Act.

5) Financial Statements

The Company's most recent financial statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 are attached hereto as Appendix A.

6) Describe the Issuer’s Business, Products and Services

A. Description of the issuer’s business operations:

We are engaged in pharmaceutical distribution, retail pharmacy and manufacturing of pharmaceuticals through our two wholly-owned
subsidiaries Liuzhou BCT and Hefeng Pharmaceutical, and BCT Retail, a retail company that we control through a series of
contractual arrangements, each of which is located in Guangxi province, China. Additionally, BCT Jian Kang Chan Ye, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Liuzhou BCT was formed in September 2012 to operate a chain of traditional Chinese medicine (“TCM”)
physical therapy service locations.

We have integrated operations in the following business segments:

● Pharmaceutical distribution 

Pharmaceutical distribution is our principal business. We conduct our wholesale business through Liuzhou BCT by purchasing
pharmaceutical products from suppliers and then distributing them to our wholesale customers, including hospitals, retail drug stores,
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other pharmaceutical wholesalers, clinics, medical centers, and individuals. Our pharmaceutical distribution business is focused on the
market of Guangxi province, which includes major cities such as Nanning, Liuzhou and Guilin and which has a population of
approximately 50 million people. We operate a large regional wholesale network in Guangxi Province supported by strategically
placed warehouse facilities. For the year ended December 31, 2012, revenue generated from our pharmaceutical distribution segment
was $172.6 million, or 71.4% of our total revenues for the year.

We distribute over 8,000 products from nearly 4,000 suppliers through our wholesale distribution in compliance with applicable PRC
regulations. Hefeng Pharmaceutical, which is one of our wholly owned subsidiaries, is also one of our suppliers. In 2012 revenue
derived from the distribution of third-party products constituted 99% of our pharmaceutical distribution segment revenue.

● Retail pharmacy 

Established in 2001, BCT Retail operates a large regional pharmaceutical retail network in Guangxi province, consisting of 196

directly owned retail stores in Guangxi province under the registered name “Baicaotang 百草堂” as of December 31, 2012. Our retail
stores provide convenient, high quality and professional pharmaceutical services and supply a wide variety of medicines, including
western medicine, TCM, Chinese herbal medicine, roughly processed Chinese herbal medicine, family planning products, and
seasonal medicine. Among the 196 stores, there are 21 stores that are medi-care qualified stores, where customers are able to make
their purchase either by cash or by using their medi-care insurance card for payment. For the year ended December 31, 2012, revenue
generated from our retail pharmacy segment was $55.0 million, or 22.7% of our revenue for the year.

● Manufacturing of pharmaceuticals 

Hefeng Pharmaceutical has a manufacturing facility on approximately 40,000 square meters of land and manufactures four types of
products:

● A Chinese herbal medicine abstraction unit for raw material and medicine paste with 670 tons of annual abstraction capacity
(Maximum daily unit production: 2.5 tons per day; maximum days of operation per year: 270 days);

● A granular formulation unit with an annual production capacity of 0.25 billion packages (Maximum daily unit production:
768,960 packages per day; maximum days of operation per year: 324 days);

● A pill formulation unit with an annual production capacity of 0.36 billion pills (Maximum daily unit production: 1,252,800
pieces per day; maximum days of operation per annum: 288 days), and

● A liquid formulation unit with an annual production capacity of 0.1 billion injections (Maximum daily unit production :
347,500 pieces per day; maximum days of operation per annum : 288 days).

Hefeng Pharmaceutical produces and sells pharmaceutical products under the registered name “Asio (亚太)” including: traditional

anti-inflammatory and antibacterial drugs, cancer treatment drugs, cardio-vascular disease drugs and hepatitis drugs. Hefeng
Pharmaceutical’s best-selling products include:

● Levodopa is used to treat the stiffness, tremors, spasms, and poor muscle control of Parkinson’s disease; 

● Tabellae Sarcandrae, a TCM protected drug, has similar anti-inflammatory and antibacterial effects as antibiotics in
Western medicine;

● Rotandine Sulfate is a non-prescription analgesic drug. Used for headaches, menstrual pain, and aiding sleep; 

● Corydalis Saxicola Bunting (Yanghuanglian) has been demonstrated to possess many pharmacological activities, including
antibacterial, antiviral and anticancer activities; and

● Ethacridine Lactate Injection is used for second trimester pregnancy termination from week 12-26 at hospitals. 

In addition, Hefeng Pharmaceutical collaborates with several renowned medical research universities in China to continuously
improve its raw material abstraction efficiency and production process, and to develop alternative formulas for existing drugs. For the
year ended December 31, 2012, revenue generated from our manufacturing segment was $14.3 million, or 5.9% of our total revenues
for the year.

The growth profile of Guangxi province is based on the following three factors:

● According to data published by the National Bureau of Statistics, Guangxi Province’s GDP was RMB1,172 billion ($186
billion) in 2011. GDP per capita in Guangxi Province was RMB25,233($4,005) in 2011 as compared with GDP per capita
between RMB47,071($7,472) to RMB78,768($12,503) in the coastal regions (such as, Fujian Province ($7,493),
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Guangdong Province ($8,040), Jiangsu Province ($9,869), Shandong Province ($7,472), Shanghai ($12,503), and Zhejiang
Province ($9,390)). In 2012 Guangxi Province’s GDP growth rate was more than 11% as compared to an average GDP
growth rate of 10.23% in the coastal regions in 2012. In 2011 Guangxi Province had a population of 46.45 million. In 2011
the population nature growth rate of Guangxi Province was 7.67 % as compared with a population nature growth rate
averaged at 4.33 % in the coastal regions. (See http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/ndsj/2012/indexce.htm).

● According to world bank index, the inflation and consumer prices (annual %) in China reached 5.4% calculated by the end
of December 2011.
(http://databank.worldbank.org/data/views/reports/tableview.aspx?isshared=true&ispopular=series&pid=9)

● The general pharmaceutical industry growth rate resulting from the RMB850 billion healthcare reform bill passed by the
Chinese government.

B. Date and State (or Jurisdiction) of Incorporation:

The Company was originally incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 30, 2006

C. Primary and secondary SIC Codes:

SIC: 5122 - WHOLESALE-DRUGS PROPRIETARIES & DRUGGISTS' SUNDRIES

D. Fiscal year end date:

The Company’s fiscal year end date is December 31.

E. Principal products or services, and their markets:

We are engaged in pharmaceutical distribution, retail pharmacy and manufacturing of pharmaceuticals through our two wholly-owned
subsidiaries Liuzhou BCT and Hefeng Pharmaceutical, and BCT Retail, a retail company that we control through a series of
contractual arrangements, each of which is located in Guangxi province, China. Additionally, BCT Jian Kang Chan Ye, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Liuzhou BCT was formed in September 2012 to operate a chain of traditional Chinese medicine (“TCM”)
physical therapy service locations. Since January 2, 2008, we have three operating segments based on our major lines of businesses:
pharmaceutical distribution, retail pharmacy and manufacturing pharmacy. For additional information regarding our segments please
refer to our financial statements.

● Pharmaceutical distribution 

Pharmaceutical distribution is our principal business. We conduct our wholesale business through Liuzhou BCT by purchasing
pharmaceutical products from suppliers and then distributing them to our wholesale customers, including hospitals, retail drug stores,
other pharmaceutical wholesalers, clinics, medical centers, and individuals. Our pharmaceutical distribution business is focused on the
market of Guangxi province, which includes major cities such as Nanning, Liuzhou and Guilin and which has a population of
approximately 50 million people. We operate a large regional wholesale network in Guangxi Province supported by strategically
placed warehouse facilities. For the year ended December 31, 2012, revenue generated from our pharmaceutical distribution segment
was $172.6 million, or 71.4% of our total revenues for the year.

We distribute over 8,000 products from nearly 4,000 suppliers through our wholesale distribution in compliance with PRC regulations.
Hefeng Pharmaceutical which is one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries is also one of our suppliers. In 2012, revenue derived from the
distribution of third-party products constituted 99% of our pharmaceutical distribution segment revenue. The terms of our distribution
agreements vary between suppliers and vary in terms of payment period, arrangement of delivery, pricing and quality requirements.
The general payment terms vary from advance deposit, to cash on delivery, to payment ranging from one month to six months from
delivery, and the payment can be settled by means of bank collection, remittance, bills payable, postal check. The delivery is either to
our warehouse, railway station, or prescribed destination within Liuzhou City. The quality of drugs supplied is in accordance with the
prescribed national standard requirement. Our top 10 suppliers in our pharmaceutical distribution segment accounted for 18.7% of our
purchases in 2012.

PRC rules and regulations require most public hospitals and healthcare institutions to purchase medicines from pharmaceutical
distributors through a centralized tendering process, which includes the implementation of government-mandated price controls. The
manufacturers of provincial catalog medicines that are on the hospitals’ formularies are invited to bid and participate in the centralized
tendering process, which they must do directly. The bidding process covers multiple categories of medicines used by the hospitals. A
duly organized committee of pharmaceutical and clinical medical experts is responsible for bid evaluations. Selection is based on a
number of factors, including bid price, quality, clinical effectiveness, and manufacturer’s reputation and service. The supply of a

http://www.sec.gov/cgi-bin/browse-edgar?action=getcompany&SIC=5122&owner=exclude&count=40
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particular type of medicine is generally made on a non-exclusive basis by multiple manufacturers and distributors. We typically advise
and assist pharmaceutical manufacturers in the hospital tendering process and distribute products of pharmaceutical manufacturers
upon purchase orders being made by the hospitals after the bidding process.

The Guangxi centralized-online tendering system was started in 2006, and in 2009 the tendering started to be applied also under the
New Rural Co-operative Health Insurance Plan. At the first tendering in 2009 we were awarded distribution rights for six counties and
townships under the New Rural Co-operative Health Insurance Plan, including Yizhou, Lipu, Gongchen, Luzhai, Laibin and Heshan,
and were selected as one of two exclusive distributors for these territories. In 2011, we were awarded an additional 16 territories.

Liuzhou BCT’s GSP Certificate, which is a certification that drugstores in China are required to obtain was issued on September 18,
2009 and will expire on September 17, 2013, subject to renewal for an additional five-year term.

● Retail Pharmacy 

Established in 2001, BCT Retail operates a large regional retail network in Guangxi province, consisting of 196 directly owned retail

stores in Guangxi province under the registered name “Baicaotang 百草堂” as of December 31, 2012. BCT Retail’s GSP Certificate
was issued on February 18, 2009 and will expire on February 17, 2014, subject to renewal for an additional five-year term. Our retail
stores provide convenient, high quality and professional pharmaceutical services, and supply a wide variety of medicines, including
western medicine, TCM, Chinese herbal medicine, roughly processed Chinese herbal medicine, family planning products, and
seasonal medicine. For the year ended December 31, 2012, revenue generated from our retail pharmacy segment was $55.0 million, or
22.7% of our revenues for the year.
Among the 196 stores, there are 21 stores that are medi-care qualified stores, where customers are able to make their purchase either
by cash or by using their medi-care insurance card for payment. With respect to medi-care insurance card payments, we issue an
invoice to the national medi-care for reimbursement for those drugs included under the medi-care insurance catalogue. Only medi-care
card payments from these 21 stores are entitled to reimbursement. The medi-care insurance catalogue used are provincial-based and
developed and based on the national insurance catalogue. The medi-care insurance program is also known as National Medical
Insurance Program.

The National Medical Insurance Program is funded primarily by provincial governments and, to a lesser degree, by program
participants and their employers. The program has two types of accounts: individual accounts and social pool accounts. Each
participant has an individual account that holds all contributions from the participant and part was contributed from his or her
employer. National medicine catalog of the National Medical Insurance Program provides guidance to what extent the purchases of
these medicines are reimbursable. The implementation of the National Medical Insurance Program is delegated to provincial
governments, each of which has established its own medicine catalog. The medicine catalog comprises two lists of drugs which are
named as Tier A and Tier B. People can consume and reimburse the drugs on these two lists by means of the insurance card at the
medi-care qualified retail stores. When the customers purchase the drugs at the medi-care qualified stores listed under Tier B, they
need to pay 20% co-payment by themselves and 80% is deducted from their individual account under the insurance card, whereas
100% is deducted from their individual account for the drugs listed under Tier A. From July 2009, onward, such policy was cancelled
and the cost of drugs listed under Tier B can be deducted from the card in full should the balance of the individual account on the card
exceed the cost of drugs purchased. If there is not a sufficient balance on the insurance card to cover the cost of the drug, the customer
must personally pay the difference at the time of purchase. Our retail stores participate in both of these two tiers of drugs. Thus,
subject to an individual having an adequate balance on their card for Tier B drugs, there is no difference between the treatment of Tier
A and Tier B drugs from July 2009 onwards.

In order to get reimbursement from the National insurance program, we have to extract the total amount of sales derived from the
amount spent by insurance card under our billing system. Our system is linked with the one at the National program. Each month, we
only need to reconcile our record with the system and issue the invoice to the National program for reimbursement approval. Then the
money will be remitted to our designated account subject to an individual having an adequate balance on their card for Tier B drugs.

The retail price under the medi-care qualified stores is subject to price controls administered by the Price Control Office under the
National Development and Reform Commission. Our retail price for Tier A and Tier B drugs under qualified stores is fixed at an
agreed ceiling of an agreed percentage over the prescribed one issued by the Guangxi Price Control Office. The prescribed drug prices
issued by the Guangxi Price Control Office are in accordance with the price upon the provincial collective tender result which is held
annually.

As for the New Rural Cooperative Medicare Plan, the participants in the scheme are people living in rural areas. The program also has
individual accounts in which more subsidies are contributed by the provincial government and no employers are involved. It
resembles the schemes under the National Medical Insurance Program in which people consume and reimburse the drugs by their
individual account. The transaction is not recorded by a card; we instead login their account under the system of the New Rural
Cooperative plan to check their balance to ensure that the limit of the account has not been reached. Unlike National Medical
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Insurance Program, the eligible person is entitled to consume the drugs under the list of Basic Drugs Catalogue rather than the Tier A
and Tier B catalogue.

The retail prices under the New Rural Cooperative Medicare Plan are subject to price controls administered by the Price Control
Office under the National Development and Reform Commission. The retail prices under the list of Basic Drugs Catalogue are fixed at
an agreed ceiling of percentage over the prescribed one issued by the Guangxi Price Control Office. The prescribed drugs prices
issued by the Guangxi Price Control Office are in accordance with the price upon the provincial collective tender result which is held
annually. In order to get reimbursement from the New Rural Cooperative Medicare Plan, our stores have to extract the sales figures
from the billing system and issue the reimbursement notes with the original vouchers and invoices to the relevant Committee for
approval. Then the Committee remits the money to the designated account opened by the stores.

● Manufacturing of Pharmaceuticals 

Hefeng Pharmaceutical has a manufacturing facility located on approximately 40,000 square meters of land, and manufactures four
types of products:

● A Chinese herbal medicine abstraction unit for raw material and medicine paste with 670 tons of annual abstraction capacity
(Maximum daily unit production: 2.5 tons per day; maximum days of operation per year: 270 days);

● A granular formulation unit with an annual production capacity of 0.25 billion packages (Maximum daily unit production:
768,960 packages per day; maximum days of operation per year: 324 days);

● A pill formulation unit with an annual production capacity of 0.36 billion pills (Maximum daily unit production: 1,252,800
pieces per day; maximum days of operation per year: 288 days); and

● A liquid formulation unit with an annual production capacity of 0.1 billion injections (Maximum daily unit production:
347,500 pieces per day; maximum days of operation per year: 288 days).

The above capacity figures have been derived by our production department. The maximum days of operation is determined after
taking into account the days of repairs, sterilization and rinsing process particular to each of the above production lines.

Hefeng Pharmaceutical produces and sells pharmaceutical products under the registered name “Asio (亚太)” including: traditional

anti-inflammatory and antibacterial drugs, cancer treatment drugs, cardio-vascular disease drugs and hepatitis drugs.

Hefeng Pharmaceutical’s best-selling products include:

● Levodopa is used to treat the stiffness, tremors, spasms, and poor muscle control of Parkinson’s disease; 

● Tabellae Sarcandrae, a TCM protected drug, has similar anti-inflammatory and antibacterial effects as antibiotics in
Western medicine;

● Rotandine Sulfate is a non-prescription analgesic drug. Used for headaches, menstrual pain, and aiding sleep; 

● Corydalis Saxicola Bunting (Yanghuanglian) has been demonstrated to possess many pharmacological activities, including
antibacterial, antiviral and anticancer activities; and

● Ethacridine Lactate Injection is used for second trimester pregnancy termination from week 12-26 at hospitals. 

In addition, Hefeng Pharmaceutical collaborates with several renowned medical research universities in China to continuously
improve its raw material abstraction efficiency and production process, and to develop alternative formulas for existing drugs. For the
year ended December 31, 2012, revenue generated from our manufacturing segment was $14.3 million, or 5.9% of our total revenues
for the year.

Hefeng Pharmaceutical’s GMP Certificate was issued on July 14, 2009 and will expire on July 13, 2014, and its GMP Certificate for
Small Volume Parental Solution was issued on July 10, 2006 and was originally supposed to expire on July 9, 2011, but the expiration
date was extended until December 31, 2013; both certificates are subject to renewal of an additional five-year term. The renewal
process requires us to apply through the State Food and Drug Administration and furnish an application form together with relevant
supporting documents, such as our product license, business registration certificate, a summary of our management over drugs
manufacturing, a self quality control report, an organization chart, education graphic data, a floor plan, assembly line, production flow
and control points, inspection detail over key processes and a list of products produced. The Food and Drugs Administration will
consider and issue the notice of acceptance upon the formality check and then carry out inspection on our technical know-how.
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Thereafter, GMP inspection unit will undertake an on-site inspection and issue an on-site inspection report in compliance with the
GMP inspection standards. The State Food and Drug Administration then reviews the on-site inspection report and announces the
result of inspection to us. The State Food and Drug Administration will issue the GMP certificate renewal if the reports are
satisfactory.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our external segment revenue after elimination of inter-segment sales, and each segment
revenue item as a percentage of our total revenue, as well as our inter-segment sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, we had approximately $39.5 million of inter-segment revenue, which includes approximately
$38.3 million in sales from our pharmaceutical distribution segment to our retail pharmacy segment, and approximately $1.2 million
in sales from our manufacturing segment to our pharmaceutical distribution segment. External segment revenue refers to segment
revenue after inter-segment elimination.

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011

’000
% of total

sales revenue ’000
% of total

sales revenue

External Segment revenue
Pharmaceutical distribution $ 172,635 71.4 $ 190,663 74.0
Retail pharmacy 54,960 22.7 53,266 20.7
Manufacturing pharmacy 14,274 5.9 13,558 5.3

$ 241,869 100.0 $ 257,487 100.0

Inter-segment revenue $ 39,547 $ 39,824

Our Products

Products Offered by Hefeng Pharmaceutical

Manufacturing both Chinese medicine and Western medicine, Hefeng Pharmaceutical maintains valid production licenses for 76
drugs. Below is the description of the five (5) best-selling drugs.

1. Levodopa
Levodopa is used to treat the stiffness, tremors, spasms, and poor muscle control of Parkinson’s
disease. Levodopa is also used to treat these same muscular conditions when they are caused by drugs
such as chlorpromazine (Thorazine), fluphenazine (Prolixin), perphenazine (Trilafon), and others. As
traditional Chinese medicine has become more and more popular worldwide, especially in South-east
Asian countries whose cultures are similar to that of the Chinese, we have exported roughly processed
Levodopa raw material to Japan and Thailand.

2. Tabellae Sarcandrae
Tabellae Sarcandrae, a TCM protected drug, has similar anti-inflammatory and antibacterial
effects as anti-biotics in Western medicine. Tabellae Sarcandrae possesses marked inhibition
effect to auricular inflammation in mice caused by croton oil, footpad inflammation in rats caused
by carragheenin and granuloma in mice by cotton ball. It could also relieve obvious abdominal
pain caused by acetic acid and inhibit bacterial growth. We are in the process of renewing the
TCM protection.

3. Rotandine
This product is non-prescription analgesic drug. Used for headaches, menstrual pain, and aiding
sleep.
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4. Corydalis Saxicola Bunting (Yanhuanglian)
Corydalis Saxicola Bunting is an important component in various prescriptions in TCM. Yanhuanglian
has been demonstrated to possess many pharmacological activities, including antibacterial, antiviral
and anticancer activities. The active ingredients are dehydrocavidine, coptisine, dehydroapocavidine
and tetradehydroscoulerine. Systemic clearance of the four active alkaloids in plasma was over 93% of
hepatic blood flow, indicating they may be quickly eliminated via hepatic clearance. Less than 10% of
the drug was excreted via urine following intravenous and oral administration, suggesting that these
four alkaloids may undergo significant metabolism in the body or the drug may be excreted via routes
other than urine. Intravenous administration of Yanhuanglian is the most common clinical practice,
because it can improve absorption of the four active alkaloids into systemic circulation.
We are the sole licensed producer for this drug in China, and the market demand for this drug has been
extremely strong due to the effectiveness of the drug to treat hepatic diseases.

5. Ethacridine Lactate Injection
This family planning drug is very popular in China; it’s used for second trimester pregnancy
termination from week 12-26 at hospitals. We are one of three licensed producers in China.

Products and services offered by BCT Retail

Our retail chain stores provide our customers with high-quality, professional and convenient pharmaceutical services and a wide
variety of medicines, including Western medicine, TCM, raw materials of dried herbal products, roughly processed herbal medicine,
family planning products, as well as convenient seasonal and promotional items. A typical retail chain drug store carries
approximately 2,800 to 3,300 different products. Management regularly reviews and refines the product selection in order to respond
to change in demographics, lifestyles, shopping habits and product preferences of our customers.

Our product selection is designed to offer choices and convenience to our customers and to achieve high gross margins for us. We
offer our customers a broad range of choices in two respects. First, we offer a wide range of complementary products in each
therapeutic category so that customers have more choices to suit their needs. For example, a customer looking for a cough remedy will
be able to find a wide variety of choices including different OTC drugs, nutritional supplements and herbal products. Second, for
products with the same therapeutic purpose, we offer choices in each of the high, medium and low price ranges to suit the needs of
customers with different spending power.

● Packaged Western and TCM. We offer approximately 2,750 packaged drugs including prescription and OTC drugs. We
accept prescriptions only from licensed healthcare providers and do not prescribe medications or otherwise practice
medicine. Our in-store pharmacists verify the validity, accuracy and completeness of all prescription drug orders. We ask all
prescription drug customers to provide us with information regarding drug allergies, current medical conditions and current
medications.

● Chinese Herbal Medicine. We offer approximately 450 types of various drinkable herbal remedies and packages of assorted
herbs for making soup, which are used by consumers as health supplements. Herbal products typically have higher margins
than prescription and OTC drugs.

● Family Planning Products. We offer approximately 40 family planning products, which include family care products such as
portable medical devices for family use, birth control and early pregnancy test products and convenience products. Our
family planning products also include seasonal and promotional items tailored to local consumer demand for convenience
and quality. We believe offering these products increases customer visits by increasing the shopping convenience for our
customers.

Our wholesale business provides BCT Retail with the majority of the pharmaceutical products sold in our retail drugstores.
Approximately 95% of the packaged Western medicine and TCM, 100% of the Chinese Herbal Medicine and 100% of the family
planning products are supplied by our wholesale business.

Besides providing procurement to our retail business, the majority of the sales revenue of our wholesale business arises from
supplying pharmaceutical products to hospitals, clinics and healthcare centers at provincial, city, county and district levels. In addition,
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our wholesale business also exchanges our products with other wholesale networks to obtain products that we do not carry. Further,
our wholesale business also distributes our products to other retail networks.

● Increasing coverage of social medical insurance in China 
The National Medical Insurance Program (“National Program”), which was introduced in 1999, is the largest medical insurance
program in China. The National Program is funded with varying levels of contributions from the PRC Government, individual
program participants and their employers. The National Program provides guidance on which prescription and over-the-counter
medicines are included in the program and to what extent the purchases of these medicines are reimbursable.

We believe that only a small percentage of the Chinese population can afford commercial insurance plans. Therefore, the National
Program coverage is expected to expand in the future. Provincial and municipal authorities who are responsible for administering
social medical insurance funds to cover such reimbursements have been gradually increasing funding in recent years. According to the
PRC Ministry of Labor and Social Security, total funding under the national insurance program reached RMB225.7 billion, or $28.9
billion, in 2008, representing an increase of 29.2% from 2007. The availability of funding is expected to increase significantly in the
near future, primarily as a result of increased financial and policy support from various levels of the PRC Government.

As a major portion of sales from our pharmaceutical distribution segment are derived from hospitals, the increase in coverage of social
medical insurance and the roll-out of the New Rural Cooperative Medicare Plan has increased the demand for drugs, including those
we distribute, by hospitals as more patients visit hospitals for treatment, knowing that the costs related to the treatment will be
reimbursed under the social medical insurance plan. In addition, we also believe that our retail business segment will benefit if the
social medical insurance plan covers a larger population base.

● Increasing access to healthcare in rural areas 

At the fifth meeting of the tenth National People’s Congress held in March 2007, the PRC Government announced its goal to
accelerate the reform and development of healthcare services in the PRC and focus on building a basic healthcare system that covers
both rural and urban areas. The PRC Government’s plans include providing expanded healthcare services for its rural citizens and
establishing comprehensive community healthcare service centers that would provide basic medical treatment and pharmaceutical
services, as well as upgrading existing class-two hospitals and state owned medical facilities. The public health service centers would
be allocated based on demand and population. In addition, the PRC Government has actively promoted the implementation of the New
Rural Cooperative Medical Insurance Scheme (“New Rural Insurance Scheme”), which seeks to provide healthcare services to the
vast rural areas of China. The program extends to cover approximately 2,729 counties in the PRC, which account for 95.4% of the
total number of counties in the PRC. In addition, the program covers approximately 814 million rural residents, which accounts for
approximately 91.5% of the total population engaged in the agricultural industry in China as of December 31, 2008.

Because we operate in Guangxi Province, which has a large number of small cities and rural areas, we believe that the New Rural
Insurance will have a positive impact on the demand for our products in all of our segments.

● PRC Healthcare Reform Plan 

In September 2008, the State Council published a draft plan to ease the difficulties and minimize the costs for PRC citizens to obtain
proper healthcare treatment. On March 17, 2009, the PRC Government issued the Opinion on Deepening the Healthcare System
Reform (the “Opinion”). The State Council subsequently released the Notice on Important Implementing Plans for the Healthcare
System Reform 2009-2011 (the “Implementing Plan”). The goal of the healthcare reform plan is to establish a basic, universal
healthcare framework to provide Chinese citizens with safe, efficient, convenient and affordable healthcare. The Opinion calls for
healthcare reform to be carried out in two steps:

● Step One aims to increase the accessibility while reducing the cost of healthcare. During this phase, the PRC Government
will build up a network of basic healthcare facilities, expand coverage of the public medical insurance system to cover 90%
or more of the population, and reform the drug supply and public hospital system.

● Step Two, which we expect to take place between 2012 and 2020, envisions the establishment of a universal healthcare
system. The entire population should be covered by public medical insurance; drugs and medical services should be
accessible and affordable to citizens in all public healthcare facilities.

While the PRC Government has neither provided a concrete timetable nor steps to implement certain tasks, such as the public hospital
reform, it has released execution guidance for other tasks. Most notably, the PRC Government announced it would spend an additional
approximately RMB 850 billion, or $125 billion from 2009 to 2011 on the healthcare industry. A significant portion was to be
expended to establish a basic healthcare medical insurance regime, which was expected to cover over 90% of the national population
by the end of 2011, mainly through the Urban Worker Program, Urban Resident Program and the New Rural Insurance Scheme. The
PRC Government further announced that the annual subsidy for each participant will be increased from approximately RMB 40, or
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$5.90 to approximately RMB 120, or $17.60 for Urban Resident Program participants, and from approximately RMB 80, or $11.76 to
approximately RMB120 or $17.60 for New Rural Insurance Scheme participants, starting from 2010. The reform plan will also raise
the cap on claim payments from four times the local average annual income to six times such income. Another significant part of the
spending plan focuses on healthcare facilities. The PRC Government originally planned 29,000 new rural clinics in 2009. From 2010
to 2012, the PRC government planned to build an additional 5,000 rural clinics, 2,000 county-level hospitals and 2,400 urban
community clinics in under-developed areas. This substantial increase in healthcare spending is expected to expedite the growth of the
healthcare industry in China.

Under the healthcare reform plan, the additional funding for the healthcare industry will primarily target four fundamental healthcare
systems in China:

● The public health services system. This system focuses on preventing disease and promoting health as a complementary
alternative to medical treatment. The public health services system will provide services such as immunizations, regular
physical check-ups (for senior citizens over 65 years of age and children under three years of age), pre-natal and post-natal
check-ups for women, prevention of infectious or chronic diseases and other preventative and fitness activities.

● The public medical insurance system. This system covers drugs and medical treatments for the majority of the population.
The healthcare reform plan will retain the framework of the current public medical insurance schemes under the National
Program, but will expand them to cover more of the population and increase the scope of treatments, raise the cap on claim
payments and cover more claims at higher percentages.

● The public healthcare delivery system. One of the primary goals of the Implementing Plan is to build more healthcare
facilities and to improve the training of healthcare professionals. Beyond additional public wellness centers, the reform plan
aims to place a medical clinic in every village and a hospital in every county by 2011. In addition, the PRC Government
will encourage private investors to establish public non-profit hospitals.

● The drug supply system. This system regulates pricing and how drugs will be procured, prescribed and dispensed in
healthcare facilities. The healthcare reform plan will focus on pricing, procurement, prescription and dispensing of essential
drugs.

Although the healthcare reform plan is expected to benefit our pharmaceutical distribution, retail pharmacy and other business
operations and improve our competitive position, the full effect of the healthcare reform plan on our operations is as yet unclear.

Industry Overview

We operate in the large and growing pharmaceutical wholesale and retail industry in China, which we believe offers compelling
industry fundamentals and benefits from favorable demographics. With approximately one-fifth of the world’s population and one of
the world’s fastest growing economies, China presents significant potential for the retail drugstore industry.

Market Overview

In China, retail pharmaceutical and other healthcare related products may be purchased at either hospital pharmacies or non-hospital
drugstores, including independent drugstores and drugstore chains. Historically, sales by hospital pharmacies accounted for a larger
percentage of retail sales of pharmaceutical products in China. This is because out-patients typically purchase their prescription drugs
at hospital pharmacies in accordance with doctors’ prescriptions. However, if a medical condition can be treated with OTC drugs,
many Chinese people typically choose to purchase OTC drugs from non-hospital drugstores instead of consulting a doctor in a
hospital for prescription medicines.

Fragmentation of the Pharmaceutical Chain Store Industry and the Trend for Consolidation

The drugstore industry in China is highly fragmented. Retail pharmacies in China include chain drugstores, individual stores, and
OTC counters in retail chain stores and supermarkets. While pharmacy chain stores and retail chain stores with OTC counters are
expanding quickly, neither format has developed a nationwide presence in China. The NDRC reported that as of December 31, 2004,
7,445 pharmaceutical product wholesalers, 1,410 pharmacy chain stores and 58,065 individual pharmaceutical product retailers have
obtained Good Supply Practices certification. According to a White Paper entitled “Status Quo of Drug Supervision in China” dated
July 18, 2008 and issued by the PRC Information Office of the State Council, there were more than 340,000 retail pharmaceutical
stores in China in 2007. (See http://former.sfda.gov.cn/cmsweb/webportal/W205/A64028182.html). Given the level of fragmentation
and increased regulatory requirements, the Company believes retailers with an effective regional presence and a strong reputation are
likely to thrive.

Non-Pharmaceutical Sales Opportunity at Retail Pharmacies
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We believe drugstore non-pharmaceutical merchandise, combined with prescription and non-prescription drugs, provides customers
with a complete wellness solution. Non-pharmaceutical merchandise includes nutrition supplements, beauty, cosmetics and fragrance
products, personal care products, as well as consumable, seasonal, promotional and other non-prescription products.

Challenges for the Drugstore Industry in China and Increased Competition

While the Chinese economy in general and the drugstore industry in particular have grown significantly in the past decade, such
growth may not continue in the future. The drugstore industry in China faces a number of challenges, including:

● Competition in the retail drugstore market in China may also intensify; 

● Industry reforms aimed to meet China’s commitments under WTO may foster increased competition from multinational
pharmacy chains at the expense of China-based pharmacy chains; and

● Current PRC laws and regulations limit any foreign investor’s ownership of drugstores to 49.0% if the foreign investor
owns interests in more than 30 drugstores in China that sell a variety of branded pharmaceutical products sourced from
different suppliers. If this restriction is relaxed or eliminated, there may be increasing competition from large foreign
drugstore chains which intend to enter into the drugstore industry in China.

The growth profile of Guangxi province is based on the following three factors:

● According to data published by the National Bureau of Statistics, Guangxi Province’s GDP was RMB1,172 billion ($186
billion) in 2011. GDP per capita in Guangxi Province was RMB25,233($4,005) in 2011 as compared with GDP per capita
between RMB47,071($7,472) to RMB78,768($12,503) in the coastal regions (such as, Fujian Province ($7,493),
Guangdong Province ($8,040), Jiangsu Province ($9,869), Shandong Province ($7,472), Shanghai ($12,503), and Zhejiang
Province ($9,390)). In 2012 Guangxi Province’s GDP growth rate was more than 11% as compared to an average GDP
growth rate of 10.23% in the coastal regions in 2012. In 2011 Guangxi Province had a population of 46.45 million. In 2011
the population nature growth rate of Guangxi Province was 7.67 % as compared with a population nature growth rate
averaged at 4.33 % in the coastal regions. (See http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/ndsj/2012/indexce.htm).

● According to world bank index, the inflation and consumer prices (annual %) in China reached 5.4% calculated by the end
of December 2011
(http://databank.worldbank.org/data/views/reports/tableview.aspx?isshared=true&ispopular=series&pid=9); and

● The general pharmaceutical industry growth rate resulting from the RMB850 billion healthcare reform bill passed by the
Chinese government.

Manufacturing Facility

We have land use rights to the 40,000 square meters of land on which our manufacturing facilities are located that are granted and
allocated to us by the government. According to Chinese law, the government owns all the land in China and companies or individuals
are authorized to use the land only through land use rights granted or allocated by, or leased from, the PRC government. We currently
have adequate manufacturing capacity for our marketed products.

Our production plant maintains Good Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) certification authorized by the national accreditation bodies of
the PRC. A GMP-certified facility operates under the GMP parameters prescribed by the institution granting such certification. GMP
parameters are operating standards that are formed to ensure product quality, by regulating the manufacturing space, the storage
warehouse for raw materials and finished products, and laboratory areas of the production facility. Hefeng Pharmaceutical operates
our production line and holds a general GMP Certificate that was issued on July 14, 2009 and will expire on July 13, 2014, and also
holds a GMP Certificate for Small Volume Parental Solution that was issued on July 10, 2006 and was originally supposed to expire
on July 9, 2011, but the expiration date was extended until December 31, 2013. The GMP Certificates cover all products that we
manufacture, as well as some products that we do not presently manufacture. Both GMP Certificates will be subject to renewal for an
additional five-year term.

Raw Materials

We require a supply of quality raw materials to manufacture our products. Historically, we have not had difficulty obtaining raw
materials from suppliers. Currently, we rely on numerous suppliers to deliver our required raw materials. We typically enter into one-
year contracts with numerous suppliers in China to secure a steady supply of raw materials throughout the year.

Target Market
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Our business operations are located in Guangxi province which hosts many second and third-tier cities with less competition in the
market of manufacture and distribution of pharmaceutical products. Through our experience in operating in such a business
environment, we have accumulated extensive business operating experience in developing a market in second- and third-tier cities and
rural areas, and have built a strong reputation and brand name awareness in Guangxi province. Moreover, we have not only gained
valuable experience in operational management, but also built up a strong sales network in Guangxi provision. With the brand name
and leading position we have established in Guangxi province, we will continue building and expanding our retail and wholesale
business in the second- and third-tier cities and the rural areas in Guangxi province through our current retail stores and the new stores
that we may acquire in the future. Based on continued forecasted growth in Guangxi province, we may apply the business model we
have established in Guangxi province to our business expansion in the second- and third-tier cities and the rural areas of our
contiguous provinces, such as Yunnan or Huainan provinces.

Marketing and Sales

We manufacture and market 19 products, consisting of prescription and over-the-counter pharmaceuticals. Our pharmaceutical
products are marketed to hospitals, clinics, pharmacies and retail stores. We maintain 22 sales offices throughout Guangxi Province
and employ approximately 53 sales and marketing professionals. Where appropriate, we leverage the synergies between
complementary products and distribution channels to accelerate the market penetration of our new products.

With respect to our retail stores, our marketing and promotion strategy is to build brand recognition, increase customer traffic to our
stores, attract new customers, build strong customer loyalty, maximize repeat customer visits and develop incremental revenue
opportunities. We work with vendors to organize promotional campaigns, and vendors typically assign sales persons to our retails
stores for these activities. We also hold promotional functions, including price reductions and free gifts, during major Chinese
holidays. We also place advertisements in local newspapers regarding our promotions.

Competition

We believe that we are well positioned to compete in the fast-developing Chinese pharmaceutical market with our strong brand,
diverse product portfolio, research and development capabilities, established sales and marketing network and favorable cost structure.
We believe that competition and leadership in our industry are based on managerial and technological expertise, and the ability to
identify and exploit commercially viable products. Other factors affecting our competitive position include time to market, patent
position, product efficacy, safety, convenience, reliability, availability and pricing.

Retail Pharmacy

The pharmaceutical industry in China is intensely competitive, rapidly evolving and highly fragmented. In many large cities in China,
we need to not only compete with other retail drugstores, but also face increasing competition pressure from discount stores,
convenience stores and supermarkets. In order to maintain our competitive position in the market, we have increasingly diversified
products and services by offering some non-drug products that are provided in regular convenience stores. In addition, we also
increased our competitiveness through careful selection of store location, merchandise, and services.

With the continuous consolidation of the pharmaceutical industry and opening of new drugstore chains in large cities, we will face
more competition in the industry. However, in many of our targeted second- and third- tier cities and rural areas, we are facing less
competition because major drugstore chains have not entered into the market. We are in a good position to establish our standing and
reputation in these targeted markets. In addition, the pharmaceutical industry has entrance barriers for new entrants due to the
requirements for such resources as capital, brand name and management expertise. Further, PRC laws and regulations limit a foreign
investor’s ownership in retail drugstores to the maximum of 49.0% if such investor holds ownership interest in more than 30 drug
stores that sell a variety of branded drugs sourced from different suppliers. This limitation, together with the complexity of the
Chinese market, creates a barrier for foreign retail drugstore chain operators to enter into the PRC market. As a result, currently we do
not face notable competition from foreign owned drugstore chains.

Because our network covers many cities and areas, and many drugstore groups are regional, our competitors vary from region to
region. Each region can have its own, among others, distinct demographics, local regulations and shopping style. We do not consider
any individual regional drugstores as our major competitor, but we compete with them on an aggregate basis. Our main competitors in
Guangxi province are Sinopharma Liuzhou Branch and Sinopharma Nanning Branch, Liuzhou Medical and Pharmaceutical Limited
on wholesale side; Shenzhen Accordance Pharm. Chain Store Inc., and Hunan Laobaixing Pharmacy Chain on retail side.

Manufacturing of Pharmaceutical Products

In the pharmaceutical manufacturing business, we compete in general with Harbin Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd., Sixth Pharma
Factory, Guangdong Boluo Xianfeng Pharmaceutical Group and Jiangsu Chia Tai Tianqing Pharmaceutical.
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We also compete with other manufacturers in each specific drug category. For instance, although we are the sole authorized producer
of Corydalis Saxicola Bunting (Yanhuanglian), which is the preferred drug treating chronic hepatitis A, B and C, there are drugs that
have a similar medical effect for treating hepatitis.

The following table lists the primary competitors for our best selling products produced by Hefeng Pharmaceutical:

Our Product Competitor’s Product - Company

Levodopa Guangxi Napo Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd
Guangxi Lingyun Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd

Tabellae Sarcandrae Shanghai Xingcheng Jiahua Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd
Jiangxi Tianshi Chinese Medicine Co. Ltd
Zhejiang Guojing Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd
These companies rely solely on their in-house sales force. We believe that our wholesale network
enables us to gain market share more quickly.

Rotandine Sulfate Injection Guangdong Boluo Xianfeng Pharmaceutical Group Ltd
Guangxi Nanning Baihui Pharmaceutical Group Ltd

Corydalis Saxicola Bunting
(Yanhuanglian)

Haimingwe Interferon - Qindao Haier Pharmaceutical
Handadang - Lianyungang Shentiantang Pharmaceutical Group
Tianqing Fuxing Marine and Glucose Injection - Jiangsu Chia-tai Tiangqing Pharmaceutical
We are the only manufacturer of our Yanhuanglian product. These competitors produce
alternative products.

Ethacridine Lactate Injection Jiangsu Tianmiao Disainuo Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd
Qinghai Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co. Ltd
We believe we are the leading supplier of this product in Guangxi Province because these
competitors have not been able to sustain their production from time to time.

Pharmaceutical Distribution

There are relatively well capitalized and established players in the pharmaceutical distribution business, such as Sinopharm Group Co.
Ltd, Liuzhou Medical and Pharmaceutical Limited and Jointtown Pharmaceutical group, which have built an intensive nationwide
network while our distribution business is relatively regionally strong. Jointtown Pharmaceutical Group does not have any subsidiaries
in Guangxi Province. Sinopharm Group has two subsidiaries in Guangxi Province, in Liuzhou Branch and Nanning. Sinopham
specializes in large volume, low margin bulk sales to regional distributors, while we specialize in higher margin end customers,
including direct sales to hospitals.
Government Regulation

We are subject to various Chinese laws and regulations pertaining to the pharmaceutical industry. We have attained certificates,
permits, and licenses required for the operation of a pharmaceutical enterprise and the manufacturing of pharmaceutical products in
China.

In 1998, the PRC State Food and Drug Administration (“SFDA”) introduced the GMP Certificate in order to promote quality and
safety of pharmaceutical production. Good Manufacturing Practices were revised in July and October, 2004. We are required to meet
GMP standards in order to continue manufacturing pharmaceutical products and health foods. For each new product, we prepare
documentation of pharmacological, toxicity, pharmacokinetics and drug metabolism studies in addition to providing samples of the
drug. The documentation and samples are then submitted to the provincial food and drug administration. This process typically takes
approximately three months. After the documentation and samples have been approved by the provincial food and drug
administration, the provincial administration submits the approved documentation and samples to the SFDA. The SFDA examines the
documentation and tests the samples and presents the findings to the New Drug Examination Committee for approval. If the
application is approved by the SFDA, the SFDA will issue a clinical trial license to the applicant for clinical trials. This clinical trial
license approval typically takes one year, followed by approximately two years of trials, depending on the category and class of the
new drug. The SFDA then examines the documentation from the trial and, if approved, issues the new drug license to the applicant.
This process usually takes eight months. The entire process takes anywhere from three to four years.

The GMP certificate is valid for a term of five years, the pharmaceutical products production permits are subject to renewal every five
years, and the health food production permits are valid for three-year terms, and each must be renewed before its expiration, if
applicable. If our GMP certificate expires without renewal, we will not be able to continue manufacturing pharmaceutical products,
which will cause our production operations to be terminated.

In addition, a distributor of pharmaceutical products in China must obtain a pharmaceutical distribution permit from the relevant
provincial or local SFDA branches. The distribution permit is granted if the relevant SFDA provincial branch receives satisfactory
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inspection results of the distributor’s facilities, warehouse, hygiene environment, quality control systems, personnel and equipment. A
pharmaceutical distribution permit is valid for five years.

The SFDA applies Good Supply Practice (“GSP”) standards to all pharmaceutical wholesale distributors as well as to retail to ensure
the quality of distribution in China. The currently applicable GSP standards require pharmaceutical distributors to implement controls
on the distribution of medicine, including standards regarding staff qualifications, distribution premises, warehouses, inspection
equipment and facilities, management and quality control. A certificate for GSP standards, or GSP certificate, is valid for five years,
except for a newly established pharmaceutical distribution company, for which the GSP certificate is valid for only one year. If our
GSP certificate expires without renewal, we will not be able to continue distributing pharmaceutical products, which will cause our
wholesale and retail distribution to be terminated.

Competitive Advantages

As a leading pharmaceutical distributor in the region, we are well-positioned to benefit from the strong growth, consolidation, and
regulatory reform in the PRC pharmaceutical and healthcare industry.

The PRC healthcare market is one of the fastest-growing healthcare markets in the world, driven by China’s rapidly growing
economy, rising living standards, increased health consciousness, large aging population and proactive government policies.
Furthermore, the PRC Government recently announced a reform plan to spend RMB850 billion on healthcare in addition to the regular
healthcare budget from 2009 to 2011, in order to increase the availability of healthcare, basic medicines and health insurance coverage
for people in China. As a comparison, in 2007, the total healthcare expenditure in China was approximately RMB1.1 trillion, of which
approximately RMB230 billion was government spending, according to the Ministry of Health. The healthcare reform plan is
expected to accelerate growth in the PRC pharmaceutical industry not only by the increased government spending, but also by the
expected increases in private healthcare spending stimulated by larger government subsidies to PRC residents, as per capita healthcare
spending remains much lower than in developed countries. We are well-positioned to capture business opportunities resulting from
this fast growing market.

Building up a modernized logistic center, a streamlined supply chain and increased capital entrance barrier for smaller competitors to
further strengthen our leading position and differentiate in the region.

In addition, China’s pharmaceutical distribution market is highly fragmented and is characterized by inefficient supply chains. The
highly fragmented pharmaceutical distribution industry has recently commenced a process of consolidation, which has led to an
increase in market share of the pharmaceutical distributors in the market, we expect the PRC pharmaceutical distribution market to
continue to consolidate into one with larger and more efficient distributors. In addition, we expect the healthcare reform plan to
promote further consolidation, as it calls for reducing the number of layers between manufacturers and consumers of medicines. We
believe that we have the scale, industry standing, brand and financial strength to compete effectively during this process of
consolidation. The PRC Government has also adopted measures to raise the operating standards of pharmaceutical companies and
promote the quality of distribution of pharmaceutical products in China, in order to ensure a stable supply of safe, effective medicines
at reasonable prices. We believe we will benefit from future regulatory reforms, which require pharmaceutical manufacturers and
distributors to implement more stringent standards on the manufacturing and distribution of pharmaceutical products. Unlike smaller
distributors, we have a large-scale distribution network, high quality equipment and facilities, leading management and qualified
personnel, which are required to satisfy the higher standards. These attributes also provide us with a competitive edge over our
competitors.

We plan to invest in a modernized logistics center. We estimate the costs of the center to be approximately RMB 150 million. We
have not committed to specific timing for our implementation of this advanced logistics center. The timing will depend on the
availability of funding, which may come from cash generated from operations, private or public financing or bank loans.

Leading Product and Brand Name in Diversified Area

Over the years, we have developed and introduced a number of pharmaceutical products under the brand name Asio (亚太), which we

believe are the leading products in their respective market segments, including Levodopa, which treats the stiffness, tremors, spasms,
and poor muscle control of Parkinson’s disease; Hydroxycamptotbecine Injection, which we believe is one of the best choices to fight
cancers of various kinds with minimal side effects; Tabellae Sarcandrae, which is called Chinese anti-biotic and has similar anti-
inflammatory and antibacterial effects as anti-biotics used in Western medicine; Corydalis Saxicola Bunting (Yanhuanglian), which
treats hepatitis, liver cirrhosis, liver ascites and liver cancer; and Yinge Tongmai Tea, which improves cardio-vascular condition and

blood circulation, and can be taken as a normal healthy drink on a daily basis. As a result, “Asio (亚太)” has become a widely

recognized brand name for our self-developed drugs in China. Among our five best-selling drugs, we are the sole producer of
Corydalis Saxicola Bunting (Yanhuanglian) and Hydroxycamptotbecine Injection.
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In addition, our sales and marketing teams are specialized in promoting products in different therapeutic categories. The teams have
strong relationships with healthcare executives, doctors and pharmacies in their respective target markets and possess extensive sales
and marketing experience in promoting prescription and non-prescription pharmaceutical products.

Strong Research and Development Capability

Our research and development department relies upon a research institute jointly formed by us and several renowned Chinese
medicine universities, including China Medicine University located in Nanjing China, which focuses on utilizing Guangxi’s natural
herbal medicine resources to produce drugs that meet the demand of the Chinese domestic market. Currently we pay for such research
and development on a project by project basis, which helps us to reduce costs related to an in-house research and development team
and to have access to the latest advances in this area. In 2011 and 2012 we did not spend any amount on research and development.

Guangxi is a province with a wealth of natural resources for developing traditional Chinese medicine. In addition, they also used great
efforts to discover advanced production process of Levodopa and Corydalis Saxicola Bunting (Yanhuanglian), to develop better
understanding of the composition of Hydroxycamptotbecine and its derivatives, to develop key technology of figure print quality
control, and to research the production technology of herbal medicine in limestone mountainous areas.

Currently, we are working with the research team for the development of Corydalis Saxicola Bunting Injection Powder by means of
vein injection on the foundation of our current Corydalis Saxicola Bunting Injection. Pre-clinical research is now undertaken by the
research team in respect of the production tactics, quality standard research, samples inspection, stability testing, package screening
process development and the pre-requisite research work required before the application of clinical research. No exact timetable is
available for the launch of this new drug in the market.

Extensive Wholesale and Retail Distribution Network and Medi-Care Qualified Stores

We operate wholesale and retail distribution networks covering major cities, townships, and counties of Guangxi province. Our
wholesale network offers more than 8,000 pharmaceutical products to our clients. Further, BCT Retail offers more than 3,200
pharmaceutical products in 196 retail stores, as of December 31, 2012, holding the leading market position in many major cities of
Guangxi province. Among the 196 stores, 21 stores are covered by a medi-care insurance plan for citizens and employees. We have
also signed an MOU with local authorities to be authorized to open 30 retail stores under the New Rural Cooperative Health Issuance
Plan.

Economic Scope and Integration Ability

We believe we have the potential to expand our scale by acquiring more wholesale and retail networks. By acquisition of a production
facility in 2008, we have established a full-integrated operation. Established in the early 1970s, our production facility has
accumulated a large reserve of production licenses, established an experienced management team, formed a strong research and
development team, and developed solid relationships with local raw material providers. This integration enables us to enjoy
economies of scale and also provides us with an ability to increase our operating efficiency in order to sustain strong profit margins
and favorable growth rates.

Experienced Management Team with Proven Track Record

Over the past decade, Mr. Huitian Tang, Chairman of our board of directors and other members of our senior management team have
provided successful leadership in our operations and increased our revenue and profit. Many members of our senior management team
have worked with us since our inception or otherwise have broad experience in the retail industry, and have developed extensive
expertise in operating a national chain of drugstores, which is important to our future development. The Chief Operating Officer of
Liuzhou BCT, Jinghua Li, has extensive experience in chain store retailing, gained from his four years service with Meidong Bio-
technology (AOB), a publicly held multinational pharmaceutical corporation. In addition, the majority of our mid-level managers and
managers of our regional operations and stores have been with us for many years. These managers have obtained extensive experience
through our internal management training system and real practice in managing retail stores and distribution centers.

Well-Established Good Supply Practices (GSP) Control System

Our logistics system is established in line with GSP. We also have a full-time GSP supervision body comprised of professionals with
professional pharmacist qualification or pharmacist-in-charge titles. They are familiar with national laws and regulations on medicine
quality, and have extensive knowledge and practical experience in the implementation of GSP in the enterprise.

Professional storage, advanced transportation equipment, comprehensive management system and detailed flow records are integrated
with hardware and software of the pharmaceutical business. The medicine warehouse occupies an area of 4,800 square meters,
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including warehouses of room temperature (0-30°C), cool (<20°C) and cold (2-8°C), stock control and subsidiary operation area,
chemical laboratory and has advanced instruments and facilities.

GSP, which can be called a total quality control system for the pharmaceutical industry, is strictly observed from purchase to sale to
storage, forming a secure tunnel for the medicine transportation and guaranteeing medicine quality.

Growth Strategy

Refining Retail and Expanding Sales Networks Targeting the Second and Third Tier Cities and Rural Markets
We believe that refining and expanding our existing retail networks in desirable geographic markets is essential to our competitiveness
and our ability to increase our profitability. Due to constraints of resources (e.g. lack of registered pharmacists and medi-care
qualifications), we are attempting to consolidate our existing retail networks and resources to transform our retail pharmacy chain into
a retail chain of larger pharmacy stores with built-in TCM clinics. With larger in-store floor space, we are able to provide more
varieties of products within the larger store areas and free medical consultations also guide customers to more sales of our TCM drugs.

Maintain and Improve Customer Loyalty with Effective Marketing and Promotional Programs

We believe that a strong brand name is critical to obtaining customers’ trust in our business, as well as building customer loyalty and
increasing customer visits to our stores. As a result, we intend to continue promoting aggressively and effectively both our brand name
and our private label products. Specifically, we will continue to deploy the following marketing and promotional initiatives:

1. adopting advanced category management by focusing on seasonal and cross-merchandising, and offering a wider selection of
products;

2. offering services that are carefully tailored to our customers’ healthcare needs, including integrated health programs focused on
health supplements, weight management, diabetes, infant care and birth control;

3. enhancing our customer loyalty by organizing community-based activities and targeted promotion programs;

4. using data mining techniques to tailor relevant promotional offers to our target customers, especially our loyalty members;

5. enlarging the number of our promotional partners and developing additional promotional campaigns with these partners; and

6. advertising our brand and private label products in selected newspapers that service our targeted cities.

Invest in More Advanced Logistics and Information Management Systems to Improve Cost and Operating Efficiencies
We intend to invest in an advanced logistic center. In Liuzhou city first, we plan to establish regional and provincial logistics facilities
equipped with leading technology and information systems. We believe that these improvements will help to provide a direct and
high-speed information exchange channel that connects us to our customers and suppliers throughout China, covering each stage of
our pharmaceutical distribution operations, including electronic order entry, invoice preparation, purchasing, inventory tracking, GSP-
certified warehousing and logistics and delivery arrangements. Once these improvements are completed, we believe that we will be
able to shorten delivery lead-times, increase responsiveness to customer demands and reduce distribution and selling expenses.

We have not adopted a specific timetable for implementing the logistic center project, and the expansion plan with respect to our retail
stores is our first priority to be carried out in the short term. The timing of the capital investment of the modernized logistic center is
subject to two principal factors:

● We believe that we must have sufficient scale to justify the investment in modernizing our logistic center. In order to
optimize the return on our investment in a modernized logistics center, we will continue to analyze the return on our
potential investment and the timing of the modernization.

● The timetable for the enforcement by the Chinese FDA on requiring modernized logistic centers to be built in order to
qualify as a distributor participating in the centralized bid tendering process. We intend to closely monitor the relevant
policies, in order to make timely plans for implementing the modernized logistic center. Currently, we do not have an
indication of when such a requirement will be put in place as the policy is still in the discussion stage.

In addition, the timing will depend on the availability of funding, which may come from cash generated from operations, private or
public financing or bank loans.

Continue to Build Upon Our Integrated Business Platform in Order to Enhance the Synergies between Our Pharmaceutical
Distribution, Retail Pharmacy and Other Businesses
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We will continue to build upon our integrated business platform in order to enhance the synergies that arise from our pharmaceutical
operations spanning the distribution, retail and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and healthcare products and expand our reach to end-
customers. We plan to leverage our existing businesses to capitalize on particular opportunities that may arise and create efficiencies
and cost savings in our business operations. We also plan to utilize our extensive distribution network to provide reliable supply
channels for our retail drug stores which, in turn, will sell the pharmaceutical and healthcare products supplied by our distribution
network. Further, we intend to utilize our pharmaceutical manufacturing operations to produce private-label products for our retail
pharmacy operations. We expect to maintain the flexibility to reallocate manufacturing capacity of our products in response to
potential changes in supply and demand, as well as to control inventory in a way that enables us to meet expected demand for our
products. With operations in multiple segments of the pharmaceutical industry, we are able to maintain control over the quality, supply
chain management and marketing of our products. We believe that our integrated business platform maximizes the synergies between
our businesses by optimizing our operational efficiency while reducing the costs of our customers, allowing us to further solidify our
leadership in the PRC pharmaceutical distribution industry.

Intellectual Property

We believe our rights to our trade names and trademarks are the most important factors in implementing our marketing strategy. Our

company’s name, Baicaotang (百草堂), means “Place for all kinds of Chinese Herbal Medicines” in Chinese. We registered

“Baicaotang (百草堂)” as the trademark for our business group, and Asio (亚太) as the trademark for the medicines that our

production plant produces. The extension of the Baicaotang (百草堂) trademark was granted on May 5, 2008 and expires on July 13,

2018. The Asio (亚太) trademark was granted on August 15, 2005 and expires on August 15, 2015.

Under the PRC law, we have the exclusive right to use a trademark for products and services for which the trademark has been
registered with the State Administration for Industry and Commerce. We use our trademarks throughout our operations and are
presently in the process of transferring trademark registrations within our corporate structure to better align registration with usage.
Trademark registration is valid for 10 years, starting from the day the registration is approved. For renewal of registration, an
application shall be made within 6 months before the expiration of such 10 years. If no application is made within that period, an
extension of 6 months may be granted. We also rely on trade secrets to protect our know-how and other proprietary information.

We currently have no patents or pending patent applications.

Employees

As of March 30, 2013, we had 1,677 full-time employees and no part-time employees.

7) Describe the Issuer’s Facilities

We have land use rights to the 40,000 square meters of land on which our manufacturing facilities are located that are granted and
allocated to us by the government. According to Chinese law, the government owns all the land in China and companies or individuals
are authorized to use the land only through land use rights granted or allocated by, or leased from, the PRC government. We currently
have adequate manufacturing capacity for our marketed products.

Our production plant maintains Good Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) certification authorized by the national accreditation bodies of
the PRC. A GMP-certified facility operates under the GMP parameters prescribed by the institution granting such certification. GMP
parameters are operating standards that are formed to ensure product quality, by regulating the manufacturing space, the storage
warehouse for raw materials and finished products, and laboratory areas of the production facility. Hefeng Pharmaceutical operates
our production line and holds a general GMP Certificate that was issued on July 14, 2009 and will expire on July 13, 2014, and also
holds a GMP Certificate for Small Volume Parental Solution that was issued on July 10, 2006 and was originally supposed to expire
on July 9, 2011, but the expiration date was extended until December 31, 2013. The GMP Certificates cover all products that we
manufacture, as well as some products that we do not presently manufacture. Both GMP Certificates will be subject to renewal for an
additional five-year term.

8) Officers, Directors, and Control Persons

A. Names of Officers, Directors, and Control Persons. The following table sets forth the name and age of officers and
directors as of August 14, 2013.

Directors and Executive Officers



Page 18 of 49

Name Age Position

Huitian Tang 51 Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Xiaoyan Zhang 40 Director & Chief Financial Officer
Kam-Cheung Chin 57 Independent Director
Simon Choi 52 Independent Director
Manwai Chiu 51 Independent Director
Yunli Lou 45 Director

Mr. Huitian Tang

Mr. Tang was appointed as our CEO on December 30, 2009 and as our Chairman on January 14, 2010. Mr. Tang is a registered
pharmacist and has been the president of Liuzhou BCT since 2001. In 1993, he was hired as the general manager by Liuzhou BCT
(f/k/a Guangxi Liuzhou Wholesaler) and was promoted to president of the company in 2001. Mr. Tang has over 25 years experience in
the traditional Chinese medicine industry. As the president of Liuzhou BCT, Mr. Tang has been responsible for the formulation of
strategies, decision-making on investment projects and development directions on the operations and overall business management,
and led us successfully through the privatization process in 2001. Prior to his employment with Liuzhou BCT in 1993, Mr. Tang was
employed by Guangxi Jinchengjiang Medicine Wholesaler Group from 1983 to 1993 where he was deputy general manager. In July
1983, Mr. Tang received a Bachelor of Chinese Pharmacy from Guangxi Chinese Medicine University. As our CEO, we believe that
Mr. Tang’s extensive experience in the traditional Chinese medicine industry and his essential knowledge of the Company’s
operations provide him with significant insights into our business which make him qualified to be the Chairman of our board of
directors.

Ms. Xiaoyan Zhang

Ms. Zhang joined Liuzhou BCT in May 2008 as our Corporate Strategy VP and was appointed as our CFO on December 30, 2009 and
as a director on January 14, 2010. Prior to joining Liuzhou BCT, from 2006 to 2008 she was a corporate finance advisor to First Asia
Finance Group, in Hong Kong. Ms. Zhang is an Associate Member of CPA Australia. She received a Masters degree in accounting
from Curtin University of Technology, Australia in 2007, an MBA in International Business from CMSD Switzerland in 2001 and a
BA (Honors) in Marketing from Portsmouth University, UK in 2004. We believe that Ms. Zhang brings extensive finance experience
and vital operational experience to the board of directors.

Mr. Kam-Cheung Chin

Mr. Chin currently has been a solo practicing accountant since August, 2005, and has served as an independent director of Jiahua
Stores Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since May, 2007. Mr. Chin previously served as the
Financial Controller and Company Secretary of Wing Shing International Holdings Ltd.(currently known as Petroasian Energy
Holdings), a Hong Kong Stock Exchange listed company, from September 2004 to July 2005. Mr. Chin was a solo practicing
accountant from June, 2003 to September 2004, and was the Assistant Manager and Manager of Raymond S.W. Ho & Co., Certified
Public Accountants from October, 2000 to May, 2003. Mr. Chin has been an Associate of Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants of the United Kingdom since 1986 and has been a Fellow since 1993. Mr. Chin has also been a qualified member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) since 1987 and has held a Practicing Certificate since 2003. Mr.
Chin received his Graduate Diploma of Computing from a long distance program from Deakin University of Australia in 2001 and his
Master of Business Administration degree from a special long distance program jointly provided by Deakin University and
Association of Professional Engineers, Scientists and Managers Australia (APESMA) in 1998. Mr. Chin received Higher Diploma in
Accountancy from Lingnan College in Hong Kong in 1982. Mr. Chin has significant experience in various roles as an independent
director and a financial controller for various companies. He has served on the board of Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited, a company
listed Hong Kong Stock Exchange and worked as financial controller for Petroasian Energy Holdings, also a company listed Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. We believe that this experience qualifies him to serve on our board of directors.

Mr. Simon Choi

Mr. Choi was appointed as our director on June 7, 2010. Mr. Simon Choi has been International Legal Counsel for TCL, a global TV
manufacturer, since February 2005. From 1998 to 2005, Mr. Choi was the Legal Counsel and Company Secretary of Simatelex, a
Hong Kong OEM small electrical appliances manufacturer, where he advised on a variety of corporate legal matters. Earlier in his
career, Mr. Choi was an Assistant Solicitor of Hastings & Co, Solicitors, where he specialized in banking, corporate finance, general
commercial and PRC practice. Mr. Choi is also an active PRC legal advisor to the Hong Kong Electrical Appliances Manufacturers
Association, a major trade association in Hong Kong. Mr. Choi received an LLB from Peking University in 1991, an LLM from
London University in 1992 and a CPEC in Law from Hong Kong University in 1994. Mr. Choi was admitted as a Solicitor of the
Supreme Court of England and Wales in 1998 and as a member of the Institute of Linguists in 1996. We believe that Mr. Choi’s
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diverse legal background and familiarity with PRC law provides him with a unique and valuable legal perspective from which he
helps advise the board of directors.

Mr. Manwai Chiu

Mr. Chiu was appointed as our director on June 7, 2010. Mr. Manwai Chiu has served as the Chief Operating Officer of Deer
Consumer Products, Inc. since May 2007, where he manages sales, sourcing, shipping and accounting. From April 1997 to May 2007,
he held various positions at Hamilton Beach Proctor-Silex, Inc., most recently as the Sourcing Director. Mr. Chui received his
Bachelor of Laws from the University of London and MBA from Charles Sturt University in Australia. We believe that Mr. Chiu
brings vital management and corporate strategy experience to the board of directors.

Ms. Yunli Lou

Ms. Yunli Lou was appointed as our director on March 17, 2011. Ms. Lou was nominated and elected as a director in accordance with
the terms of the Preferred Purchase Agreement with Milestone on January 18, 2011 in connection with a sale and purchase of
9,375,000 shares of the Company’s Series A Convertible Preferred Shares. In accordance with the Preferred Purchase Agreement and
in connection with the closing thereunder, the Board approved the increase in the size of the board of directors from five to seven
members. Since March 2007, Ms. Lou has served, and continues to serve as a director of VisionChina Media Inc. and Ms. Lou has
been a managing director of Milestone Capital Partners Limited since 2007, responsible for the firm’s overall management, investor
relations as well as deal sourcing and execution. Ms. Lou has been a managing partner of Milestone Capital Management Limited
since 2002. Before founding Milestone Capital in 2002, Ms. Lou was a vice president of Merrill Lynch’s direct investment group,
where she was responsible for the firm’s investment activities in China. Prior to joining Merrill Lynch in 1995, Ms. Lou worked in the
corporate finance division of Goldman Sachs in New York and Hong Kong. Ms. Lou received a bachelor’s degree in economics from
Harvard University in 1992. We believe that Ms. Lou’s business and finance experience qualify her to serve on our board of directors.

B. Legal/Disciplinary History. Please identify whether any of the foregoing persons have, in the last five years, been the subject
of:

1. A conviction in a criminal proceeding or named as a defendant in a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses);

Not applicable

2. The entry of an order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, by a court of competent
jurisdiction that permanently or temporarily enjoined, barred, suspended or otherwise limited such person’s involvement
in any type of business, securities, commodities, or banking activities;

Not applicable

3. A finding or judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Securities and Exchange Commission,
the Commodity Futures Trading Commission, or a state securities regulator of a violation of federal or state securities or
commodities law, which finding or judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated; or

Not applicable

4. The entry of an order by a self-regulatory organization that permanently or temporarily barred suspended or otherwise
limited such person’s involvement in any type of business or securities activities.

Not applicable

C. Beneficial Shareholders. The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our common
stock effective March 26, 2013 by (i) each person (or group of affiliated persons) who is known by us to own more than five
percent of the outstanding shares of our common stock, (ii) each director, and named executive officer, and (iii) all of our
directors and executive officers as a group. As of March 26, 2013, we had 38,154,340 shares of common stock issued and
outstanding.

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership (1) Percent of Class (2)

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Common Preferred Common Preferred
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Stock Stock Stock Stock

Xiaoyan Zhang (2) 23,732,500 - 60.22% -
Huitian Tang (2) 3,593,693 - 9.10% -
Kam-Cheung Chin - - - -
Manwai Chiu 10,000 - - -
Simon Choi 10,000 - - -
Yunli Lou (3) - - - -
Yujing Tan (2) 2,816,889 - 7.38% -
Jinghua Li (2) 3,474,237 - 9.11% -
Milestone Longcheng Limited (4) 9,375,000 9,375,000 19.73% 100%
All directors and executive officers as a group (5 persons) 27,346,193 - 67.06% -

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with SEC rules and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to
securities. Unless otherwise noted, the principal address of each of the stockholders, directors and officers listed below is c/o Guangxi
Liuzhou Baicaotang Medicine Limited, No. 102 Chengzhan Road, Liuzhou City, Guangxi Province, PRC.

All share ownership figures include shares of our common stock and securities convertible or exchangeable into shares of our
common stock within sixty (60) days of March 26, 2013, which are deemed outstanding and beneficially owned by such person for
purposes of computing his or her percentage ownership, but not for purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other
person.

(1) Beneficial ownership as reported in the table has been determined in accordance with Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) regulations and includes shares of our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of stock options that
are exercisable and preferred stock that is convertible into common stock within 60 days of March 26, 2013 as follows: Mr. Tang —
1,352,500 shares, Ms. Zhang — 1,252,500 shares; Mr. Chiu — 10,000 shares, Mr. Choi — 10,000 shares and all directors and
executive officers as a group — 2,625,000 shares; and Milestone — 9,375,000 shares of preferred stock convertible into 9,375,000
shares of common stock. Pursuant to SEC regulations, all shares not currently outstanding that are subject to options exercisable
within 60 days are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing “Percent of Class” held by the holder thereof but are not
deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the “Percent of Class” held by any other stockholder.

(2) Xiaoyan Zhang is a citizen of Hong Kong and our Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and director and holds the
22,480,000 shares as the legal owner. Pursuant to an Earn-In Agreement dated December 30, 2009, as amended on May 19, 2010, by
and among Ms. Zhang and the Liuzhou BCT Shareholders, the Liuzhou BCT Shareholders have a call right to purchase up to
22,480,000 shares of our common stock from Ms. Zhang for a nominal amount per share provided that the Company meets certain
performance targets for fiscal 2010 and 2011. For the 2010 and 2011 fiscal years the performance targets for the Company are $26
million and $28 million after tax audited net income, respectively. If the 2010 performance target is met, the Liuzhou BCT
Shareholders have the right to acquire 50% of shares held by Ms. Zhang over which they have a call right. If the 2011 performance
target is met the Liuzhou BCT Shareholders have the right to acquire the other 50% of the shares held by Ms. Zhang over which they
have a call right. The number of shares which can be acquired by the Liuzhou BCT Shareholders under the Earn-In Agreement is in
proportion to their former relative ownership interest in Liuzhou BCT. Our Chairman and CEO, Huitian Tang, is one of the Liuzhou
BCT Shareholders and has the right to acquire up to 2,241,193 shares of our common stock under the Earn-In Agreement if both
performance targets are met. Pursuant to the Earn-in-Agreement, there are no restrictions on Ms. Zhang’s ability to vote these shares.
The shares may not be transferred by Ms. Zhang except pursuant to the Earn-in-Agreement and after its expiration only in the manner
agreed with the Liuzhou BCT Shareholders. The Liuzhou BCT Shareholders can only obtain legal ownership of the shares under the
Earn-In Agreement. Messrs. Tan and Li are Liuzhou BCT Shareholders with rights under the Earn-In Agreement to acquire the
number of shares set opposite their names and have the same rights with respect to the shares as Mr. Tang’s rights described above in
this footnote and elsewhere in this annual report.

(3) Ms. Lou’s business address is Room 1708 Dominion Centre, 43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

(4) Milestone Longcheng Limited’s address is P.O. Box 957, Offshore Incorporation Center, Road Town, Tortola, British
Virgin Islands. Milestone Longcheng Limited is wholly owned by Milestone China Opportunities Fund II, L.P., an exempted limited
partnership formed under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The general partner of the Milestone China Opportunities Fund II, L.P. is
Milestone Capital Partners Limited, a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The sole director
of Milestone Capital Partners Limited is Cherianne Limited, a company organized under the laws of the British Virgin Islands. Yuen
Ho Wan and James Ngai, as all of the directors of Cherianne Limited, share the investment and voting power of Cherianne Limited.
Ms. Wan’s and Mr. Ngai’s business address is Room 1708 Dominion Centre, 43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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9) Third Party Providers

Name, address, telephone number, and email address of each of the following outside providers that advise your company on matters
relating to operations, business development and disclosure:

Legal Counsel
Name: Tom Wardell
Firm: McKenna Long & Aldridge, LLP
Address 1: 303 Peachtree Street, Suite 5300
Address 2: Atlanta, GA 30308
Phone: 213.243.6130
Email: twardell@mckennalong.com

mailto:twardell@mckennalong.com
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10) Issuer Certification

Chief Executive Officer Certification:

I, Huitian Tang, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report of China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this disclosure statement does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this disclosure statement; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included or incorporated by reference in
this disclosure statement, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this disclosure statement.

August 19, 2013

/s/ Huitian Tang
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer Certification:
I, Xiaoyan Zhang certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report of China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this disclosure statement does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this disclosure statement; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included or incorporated by reference in
this disclosure statement, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this disclosure statement.

August 19, 2013

/s/ Xiaoyan Zhang
Chief Financial Officer
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APPENDIX A

CHINA BCT PHARMACY GROUP, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

(Stated in US Dollars)

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30

(unaudited) (unaudited)

2013 2012 2013 2012

Sales revenue $74,635,159 $61,097,960 $141,212,451 $132,343,319
Cost of sales 60,936,449 47,746,668 116,267,382 102,480,051

Gross profit 13,698,710 13,351,292 24,945,069 29,863,268

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses 3,269,604 2,624,345 6,099,875 4,621,643
Selling expenses 2,759,323 2,181,701 5,152,356 4,562,650

Total operating expenses 6,028,927 4,806,046 11,252,231 9,184,293

Income from operations 7,669,783 8,545,246 13,692,838 20,678,975

Non-operating income (expense)
Interest income 182,185 13,447 184,473 18,796
Other income 47,388 87,330 130,890 251,770

Change in fair value of warrant liabilities - 180,177 - 137,453
Other expenses (19,865) (11,295) (26,360) (12,503)
Finance costs (971,147) (270,377) (1,289,509) (492,285)

Total non-operating income (expense) (761,439) (718) (1,000,506) (96,769)

Income before income taxes 6,908,344 8,544,528 12,692,332 20,582,206

Income taxes (2,085,824) (2,112,052) (3,280,231) (5,244,609)

Net income 4,822,520 6,432,476 9,412,101 15,337,597
Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation adjustments 2,659,716 124,404 3,594,092 1,011,902

Total comprehensive income $ 7,482,236 $ 6,556,880 $ 13,006,193 $ 16,349,499

Earnings per share – basic and diluted $ 0.09 $ 0.13 $ 0.17 $ 0.34

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding – basic and diluted 38,154,340 38,154,340 38,154,340 38,154,340

Reconciliation of net income to applicable income
to common stock:
Net income $4,822,520 $6,432,476 $9,412,101 $15,337,597
Less: dividends and accretion on preferred stock (1,465,136) (1,335,761) (2,806,522) (2,502,772)

Income applicable to common stock $3,357,384 $5,096,715 $6,605,579 $12,834,825

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Stated in US Dollars)

June 30, December 31,

2013 2012

(Unaudited) (*)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 26,039,814 $ 21,608,989

Restricted cash 18,081,581 8,981,747

Accounts receivable, net 171,559,183 146,186,381

Bills receivable 169,163 74,246

Amounts due from related companies 312,515 264,939

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits 11,848,844 7,751,059

Inventories 19,643,019 13,602,065

Deferred income taxes 1,307,379 1,055,490

Total current assets 248,961,498 172,086,814

Property, plant and equipment, net 27,718,102 22,513,944

Land use rights, net 13,449,387 13,351,239

Long-term deposits 7,562,880 7,726,504

Goodwill 503,571 495,566

Other intangible assets, net 373,603 417,482

Deferred income taxes 783,815 911,245

Other investment 32,320 31,666

Total assets $ 299,385,176 $ 244,972,562

(*) Derived from audited financial statements

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Cont’d)

(Stated in US Dollars)

June 30, December 31,

2013 2012

(Unaudited) (*)

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 63,422,494 $ 39,723,026

Bills payable 19,816,823 10,421,288

Other payables and accrued expenses 5,991,008 5,802,561

Amounts due to directors 58,280 129,700

Amounts due to related companies 161,278 375,460

Income taxes payable 2,115,747 834,554

Bank loans, current portion 22,766,903 15,953,308

Other loans 202,162 178,438

Retirement benefit costs, current portion 72,001 65,502

Total current liabilities 114,606,696 73,483,837

Bank loans 67,549 113,420

Retirement benefit costs 159,840 162,420

Total liabilities 114,834,085 73,759,677

Commitments and contingencies

Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock
Series A convertible, redeemable preferred stock:

$0.001 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized;

9,375,000 shares issued and outstanding 39,754,219 36,947,697

Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock: par value $0.001 per share;

150,000,000 shares authorized;

38,154,340 shares issued and outstanding 38,154 38,154

Additional paid-in capital 19,243,237 18,911,224

Statutory and other reserves 8,048,691 8,048,691

Accumulated other comprehensive income 13,621,633 10,027,541

Retained earnings 103,845,157 97,239,578

Total Stockholders’ Equity 144,796,872 134,265,188

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 299,385,176 $ 244,972,562

(*) Derived from audited financial statements

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Stated in US Dollars)

Six months ended June 30
(Unaudited)

2012 2012

Cash flows from operating activities :
Net income $9,412,101 $ 15,337,597

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows
provided by operating activities :

Depreciation and amortization 1,314,282 812,983
Deferred taxes (83,992) 35,094
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - -
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities - (137,453)
Share-based compensation 332,013 305,446

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (22,244,353 (27,104,275)
Bills receivable (92,705) (61,776)
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits (3,819,633) (2,258,690)
Inventories (5,699,578) (4,858,382)
Accounts payable 22,666,792 10,698,050
Other payables and accrued expenses 84,997 (116,188)
Retirement benefit costs (760) 3,422
Income tax payable 1,254,662 (683,396)

Total adjustments (6,288,275) (23,365,165)

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities $ 3,123,826 $ (8,027,568)

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Cont’d)

(Stated in US Dollars)

Six months ended June 30
(Unaudited)

2013 20112

Cash flows from investing activities :
Additions to property, plant and equipment $ (5,805,827) $ (2,115,806)
Payments to acquire intangible assets - (449)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 557 -
Change in long-term deposits 318,160 (284,598)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (5,487,110) (2,400,853)

Cash flows from financing activities :
Advance/repayment to related companies (262,538) 423,417
Change in restricted cash (8,880,142) 561,379
Change in bills payables 9,146,088 (1,555,158)
Repayments to directors (73,032) (42,486)
Proceeds from bank loans 12,976,480 5,538,050
Repayments of bank loans (6,540,242) (4,944,329)
Preferred dividend paid - (1,500,000)

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities 6,366,614 (1,519,127)

Effect of foreign currency translation on cash and cash equivalents 427,515 148,663

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,430,845 (11,798,885)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period 21,608,989 31,479,528

Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $26,039,814 $19,680,643

Supplemental disclosures for cash flow information :
Cash paid for :

Interest $1,277,006 $416,764

Income taxes $2,109.561 $ 5,892,912

Non-cash financing and investing activities
Dividend and accretion on preferred stock $2,806,522 $ 1,002,772

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(Unaudited)

(Stated in US Dollars)

Accumulated

Additional Statutory other

Common stock paid-in and surplus comprehensive Retained

No. of shares Amount capital reserves income earnings Total

Balance, December 31, 2012 38,154,340 $ 38,154 $ 18,911,224 $ 8,048,691 $ 10,027,541 $ 97,239,578 $ 134,265,188

Net income - - - - - 9,412,101- 9,412,101

Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - - 3,594,092 - 3,594,092-

Share-based compensation - - 332,013- - - - 332,013-

Accretion of preferred stock to redemption - - - - - (2,806,522) (2,806,522)

Balance, June 30, 2013 38,154,340 $38,154 $19,243,237 $8,048,691 $13,621,633 $103,845,157 $144,796,872

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

(Stated in US Dollars)

1. Corporate information

China Baicaotang Medicine Limited (the “Company”), formerly known as Purden Lake Resource Corp., which changed

its name on December 24, 2009, was incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 30, 2006 as a limited liability

company. The name of the Company was changed from China Baicaotang Medicine Limited to China BCT Pharmacy

Group, Inc. on March 25, 2010.

The Company is principally engaged in the production, distribution and retailing drugs in the People’s Republic of

China (the “PRC”).

Currently the Company has six subsidiaries:

Company name

Place/date of
incorporation or

establishment

The
Company's

effective
ownership

interest
Common stock/

registered capital Principal activities
Ingenious Paragon
Global Limited
(“Ingenious”)

British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”) / May 29,
2008

100% Authorized, issued and
fully paid 50,000
common shares of $1
par value each

Investment holding

Forever Well Asia
Pacific Limited
(“Forever Well”)

Hong Kong / January
10, 2008

100% Authorized, issued and
fully paid 10,000
common shares of
HK$1 par value each

Investment holding

Guangxi Liuzhou
Baicaotang Medicine
Limited (“Liuzhou
BCT”)

PRC / April 3, 1986 100% Registered and fully
paid up capital of
RMB192,478,478

Investment holding
and distribution of
drugs

Guangxi Liuzhou
Baicaotang Medicine
(Retail Chain) Limited
(“BCT Retail”)

PRC / October 30,
2001

100% Registered and fully
paid up capital of
RMB3,000,000

Retail sales of drugs

Guangxi Hefeng
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
(“Hefeng
Pharmaceutical”)

PRC / September 18,
2000

100% Registered and fully
paid up capital of
RMB5,000,000

Production and sales
of drugs

Guangxi Liuzhou
Baiaotang Jian Kang
Chan Ye Limited (“BCT
Jian Kang”)

PRC/ September 6,
2012

100% Registered and fully
paid up capital
RMB500,000

Beauty and massage
services



2. Basis of presentation

Although the Company is no longer an SEC reporting company, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with the rules and regulations of the

Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) including the instructions to Form 10-Q and Regulation S-

X. Certain information and note disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been omitted from these statements

pursuant to such rules and regulations and, accordingly, they do not include all the information and notes necessary for

comprehensive consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2012, filed with the SEC on April 15, 2013.

In the opinion of the management of the Company, all adjustments, which are of a normal recurring nature, necessary

for a fair statement of the results for the period presented herewith have been made. Results for the interim periods

presented are not necessarily indicative of the results that might be expected for the entire fiscal year.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc, and its subsidiaries;

Ingenious, Forever Well, Liuzhou BCT, BCT Retail, BCT Jian Kang and Hefeng Pharmaceutical. All significant inter-

company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is the exclusive

reference of authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) recognized by the FASB to be

applied by nongovernment entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission

(“SEC”) under authority of US federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative US GAAP for SEC

registrants. The Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with US GAAP, which may require the use

of management estimates and assumptions. The accounts and estimates include, but are not limited to, the valuation of

accounts receivable, inventories, warrant liabilities and share-based compensation, the estimation on useful lives of

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, and goodwill impairment. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash, deposits in banks and other highly liquid investments with initial maturities

of three months or less. As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the cash and cash equivalents were mainly

denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollars placed with banks in the PRC and Hong Kong. Those

denominated in RMB are not freely convertible into foreign currencies, and the remittance of these funds out of the

PRC is subject to exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government. The remaining insignificant balance



of cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents amounts set aside by the Company in accordance with the Company’s debt agreements with

certain financial institutions. These cash amounts are designated for the purpose of paying down the principal amounts

owed to the financial institutions, and these amounts are held at the same financial institutions with which the Company

has debt agreements in the PRC. Due to the short-term nature of the Company’s debt obligations to these banks, the

corresponding restricted cash balances have been classified as current assets in the consolidated financial statements

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based on management’s assessment of the collectability

of accounts receivable. A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the amount of the allowance. The

Company considers the historical level of credit losses of all segments (pharmaceutical distribution, retail pharmacy

and manufacturing) and applies percentages to aged receivable categories. The Company makes judgments about the

creditworthiness of each customer based on ongoing credit evaluations, and monitors current economic trends that

might impact the level of credit losses in the future. If the financial condition of the customers were to deteriorate

resulting in their inability to make payments, a higher allowance may be required.

The Company's general credit sales policy is to provide its customers with credit ranging from one month to six

months. Within the period, the Company does not consider the receivables overdue and it does not record any bad debt

provision. When sales occurs, the Company automatically grants its customers credit for one month to three months.

An extended credit period of three to six months may be given upon sales managers’ approvals. Therefore, any

receivables within six months do not have any provision for bad debt. Any receivable ranging from six months up to

one year, are considered overdue, and will need a bad debt provision of 40%.

As of June 30, 2013, approximately 80% of the Company's accounts receivable were derived from hospitals,

community service centers and clinics. In the PRC, all hospitals and community service centers are owned or

controlled by the PRC government. The Company believes that it is highly unlikely that a liquidation of one of its

hospital customers will occur, and that the recovery of debts from hospitals is highly assured. Therefore, it is within

the Company's customary practice to grant a longer credit period to those accounts and no allowance for doubtful

accounts was made as receivables from those accounts are reasonably assured.

Based on the above assessment, management established the general provisioning policy to make the allowance

equivalent to 40% of the gross amount of accounts receivable due between six months and one year and 100% of gross

amount of accounts receivable due over one year. Additional provisions are made against accounts receivable

whenever they are considered to be doubtful.

Bad debts are written off when identified. The Company extends unsecured credit to customers ranging from three to

six months in the normal course of business. The Company does not accrue interest on accounts receivable.

Historically, losses from uncollectible accounts have not significantly deviated from the general allowance estimated by

management and no significant additional bad debts have been written off directly to the profit and loss. This general

provisioning policy has not changed since inception and management considers that the policy is reasonable.



Management does not expect the policy to be changed in the near future.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes

all expenditures incurred in bringing the goods to a saleable condition. The Company’s reserve requirements generally

fluctuate based on projected inventory demand, market conditions and product life cycles. In determining the adequate

level of inventories to have on hand, management projects inventory demand and compares it to the current or

committed inventory levels. Inventory quantities and expiration dates are regularly reviewed and provisions for excess

or obsolete inventory are recorded based on the expiration dates and the Company’s forecast of demand and market

conditions.

No provision for excess or obsolete inventory was deemed necessary as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the purchase price of the

asset and other costs incurred to place the asset into service.

Depreciation is computed by using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives. The principal depreciation rates

are as follows:

Annual rate Residual value

Buildings and improvements 2.54% - 9.84% Nil - 2 %
Leasehold improvements Lesser of

lease terms
or 5% to

10%

Nil

Plant and machinery 7% - 18.4 % Nil - 10 %

Motor vehicles 6% -18.4 % 10 %

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6% -18.4 % 10 %

Construction in progress mainly represents expenditures related to the renovations of retail stores. All direct costs are

capitalized as construction in progress. No depreciation is provided with respect to construction in progress.

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Cost and related accumulated depreciation of property sold or

otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in non-operating

income (expense).

Goodwill and intangible assets



Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price and other acquisition related costs over the estimated fair value of

the net tangible and intangible assets acquired. Under FASB ASC 805, goodwill and other intangible assets with

indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at least annually. All other intangible

assets (pharmaceutical licenses, customer contracts, trademarks, technology know-how and patents) are amortized over

their estimated useful lives, which range from one to ten years.

Management assesses potential impairments to intangible assets at least annually, or when there is evidence that events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered. Judgments regarding

the existence of impairment indicators and future cash flows related to intangible assets are based on operational

performance of the acquired businesses, market conditions and other factors

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed by using the straight-line

method over the terms of the leases ranging from 40 to 70 years. The lease terms are obtained from the relevant PRC

land authority.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are tested for impairment in accordance with FASB ASC 360-10-45 “Impairment or Disposal of

Long-Lived Assets.” The Company periodically evaluates potential impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. The Company recognizes

impairment of long-lived assets in the event that the net book value of such assets exceeds the future undiscounted cash

flows attributable to such assets. During the reporting periods, the Company has not identified any indicators that

would require testing for impairment.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sales of the Company’s products in the pharmaceutical distribution and manufacturing segments is

recognized upon customer acceptance. This occurs at the time of delivery to the customer, provided persuasive

evidence of an arrangement exists, such as a signed sales contract. The significant risks and rewards of ownership are

transferred to the customers at the time when the products are delivered and there is no significant post-delivery

obligation to the Company. In addition, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably

assured. The Company does not provide customers with contractual rights of return for products. When there are

significant post-delivery performance obligations, revenue is recognized only after such obligations are fulfilled. The

Company evaluates the terms of each sales agreement with the customer in order to determine whether any significant

post-delivery performance obligations exist. Currently, sales under both the pharmaceutical distribution and

manufacturing segments do not include any terms which may impose any significant post-delivery performance

obligations on the Company.

Revenue from sales of the Company’s products in the retail pharmacy segment is recognized upon customer

acceptance. This occurs at the time when the product is purchased by the retail customers at the Company’s retail

stores, and there is no significant post-delivery obligation, and collection is reasonably assured. The Company does not



have a return policy allowing customers to return the products sold. When there are any significant post-delivery

performance obligations, revenue is recognized only after such obligations are fulfilled. The Company evaluates the

rules and regulations relating to the retail sales of drugs in the PRC in order to determine whether any significant post-

delivery performance obligations exist. Currently, the rules and regulations relating to the retail sales of drugs in the

PRC do not include any provisions which may impose significant post-delivery performance obligations on the

Company

Revenues from services primarily consist of provision of foot and body massage services. Revenues from provision of

services are recognized when payment is tendered at the point of sale. Proceeds from sale of gift coupons are recorded

as deferred revenue and recognized as income when redeemed by holders. Gift coupons that have not been redeemed

over the expired times are recognized as income following the date of expiration

Advertising, research and development expenses

Advertising and research and development expenses are expensed as incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Liuzhou BCT adopted a retirement plan to provide eligible employees who were hired prior to April 23, 2002. These

eligible employees are entitled to receive certain amounts of retirement benefits upon termination or retirement from the

Company. The amounts are based on the employees’ years of service in Liuzhou BCT up to April 23, 2002. The

obligation for retirement benefit costs is recorded at the present value of the cost that is expected to settle the obligation

and is recognized when the retirement plan is approved. The employees hired after April 23, 2002 are not entitled to

this retirement plan.

Shipping and handling costs

Shipping and handling costs are expensed as incurred and are included in selling expenses.

Vendor allowances

The Company receives allowances from certain vendors. These allowances are received for a variety of buying

activities, such as volume purchase allowance associated with vendor programs. Consideration received from a vendor

is a reduction in the cost of the inventory and is recognized as a reduction in the cost of sales. The Company also

receives promotional allowance funds for specific vendor-sponsored programs per the applicable agreements. These

potential allowance funds are recognized as a reduction in the cost of sales as the program occurs.

Store opening costs

Costs incurred in connection with store start-up, such as travel for recruitment, training and setup for new store

openings costs are expensed as incurred

Dividends



Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period when they are declared.

Off-balance sheet arrangements

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Income taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes pursuant to FASB ASC 740 "Income

Taxes”. Under the asset and liability method of FASB ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for

the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statements carrying amounts of

existing assets and liabilities and loss carry forwards and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary

differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Comprehensive income

The Company has adopted FASB ASC 220, “Comprehensive Income”, which establishes standards for reporting and

display of comprehensive income (loss), its components and accumulated balances. Components of comprehensive

income (loss) include net income and foreign currency translation adjustments.

Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist

principally of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable and amounts due from related

companies. As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, substantially all of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents

and restricted cash were held by major financial institutions located in the PRC, which management believes are of high

credit standing. With respect to accounts receivable, the Company extends credit based on an evaluation of the

customer’s financial condition. The Company generally does not require collateral for accounts receivable and

maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for accounts receivable.

During the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s

consolidated sales and no single customer constituted 10% or more of the Company’s accounts receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Company is RMB which is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. The Company

maintains its financial records in the functional currency. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies

other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at rates of exchange prevailing at the

balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the

functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Exchange gains or losses arising

from foreign currency transactions are included in the determination of net income for the respective periods.



Assets and liabilities of the Company’s operations are translated into the reporting currency, United States dollars, at

the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet dates. Revenue and expenses are translated at average rates in effect

during the reporting periods. The resulting translation adjustment is reflected as accumulated other comprehensive

income, a separate component of stockholders’ equity in the statement of stockholders’ equity.

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The Company reports basic earnings per share in accordance with FASB ASC 260, “Earnings Per Share”. Basic

earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the reporting

periods. The weighted average number of shares of the Company represents the common stock outstanding during the

reporting periods. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding plus the effect of dilutive securities outstanding during the reporting periods

Fair value of financial instruments

FASB ASC 820 requires the disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments including those financial

instruments for which the fair value option was not elected. The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities

approximate their fair values due to short maturities or the applicable interest rates approximate the current market

rates.

4. Income taxes

United States

The Company is subject to the United States of America tax law at tax rates up to 35%. No provision for the US federal

income taxes has been made as the Company had no taxable income under this jurisdiction for the reporting periods.

BVI

Ingenious was incorporated in the BVI and, under the current laws of the BVI, is not subject to income taxes.

Hong Kong

Forever Well is subject to the Hong Kong Profits tax at a tax rate of 16.5%. No provision for the Hong Kong Profits

tax has been made as the Company had no taxable income under this jurisdiction since its incorporation.

PRC

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) to Liuzhou BCT, BCT Retail, BCT Jian Kang and Hefeng Pharmaceutical was charged

at a rate of 25%.

5. Earnings per share



Basic earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding. Potential dilutive shares are excluded from the computation of earnings per share as average market price

of the Company’s common stock did not exceed the weighted average exercise price of such options, warrants, and

preferred shares, and to have included them would have been anti-dilutive. Accordingly, the basic and diluted earnings

per share are the same.

6. Inventories

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Raw materials $1,493,258 $ 1,137,315

Work-in-progress 175,822 153,691

Finished goods 17,973,939 12,311,059

$19,643,019 $ 13,602,065

7. Goodwill and other Intangible assets, net

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Goodwill

Acquisitions of retail stores $395,602
454,841110

$ 387,598
452,450Acquisition of Hefeng Pharmaceutical 107,969 107,968

Total $ 503,571 $ 495,566
560,418560

Other intangible assets

Pharmaceutical licenses $799,197
799,1979

$ 799,197
799,197Customer contracts 90,729 90,729

Trademarks, technology know-how, and patents 127,757 125,869

1,017,683 1,015,795

Accumulated amortization (644,080) (598,313)

Net $373,603
558,139

$ 417,482
581,481

During the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, amortization of intangible assets amounted to $44,203 and

$43,963, respectively.



8. Property, plant and equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, as follows:

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Buildings and improvements $ 15,475,744 $ 15,156,838
Leasehold improvements 12,378,757 6,547,785
Plant and machinery 1,621,387 1,573,435
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,937,184 4,714,562
Motor vehicles 457,087 446,461

34,870,159 28,439,081

Accumulated depreciation (7,152,057) (5,925,137)

Net $ 27,718,102 $ 22,513,944

(a) An analysis of buildings and improvement pledged for bank loans (note 11(d)(i)) is as follows :

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Buildings and improvement $ 9,427,717 $ 9,215,867
Accumulated depreciation (2,954,819) (2,489,947)

$ 6,472,898 $ 6,725,920

9. Land use rights

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Land use rights $ 16,903,728 $ 15,565,497
Accumulated amortization (3,454,341) (2,214,258)

$ 13,449,387 $ 13,351,239

The Company has obtained land use rights from the relevant PRC land authority for periods ranging from 40 to 70

years to use the land on which the office premises, production facilities and warehouse of the Company are situated. As

of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, land use rights with carrying amount of $5,248,255 and $4,435,335,

respectively, were pledged to a bank for the bank loans granted to the Company (Note 11(d)(ii)).

During the six months ended June 31, 2013 and 2012, amortization amounted to $169,288 and $167,246, respectively.

10. Amounts due from/to related companies

The related companies are controlled by certain of the Company’s directors including of Mr. Huitian Tang, the

Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. These amounts due from or to related companies are interest-free,

unsecured and payable on demand.



11. Bank loans and bills payable

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Short-term bank loans - note 12(a) $22,672,480 $ 15,864,666
Current portion of long-term bank loan 94,423 88,642

$22,766,903 $ 15,953,308

Long-term bank loans - note 12(b) 161,972 202,062
Less: current portion of long term bank loans $ (94,423) $ (88,642)

$ 67,549 $ 113,420

(a) The weighted average interest rates for short-term loans as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were 6.8% and

7.15% per annum, respectively.

(b) The long-term loans as of June 30, 2013 bear interest rates from 8.515% which are adjusted on an annual basis in

accordance with the loan rate published by the People’s Bank of China.

(c) The Company’s banking facilities were composed of the following:

June 30, 2013 December 31, 2012

Bills payable, net of
restricted cash

Bank loans Bills payable, net
of restricted cash

Bank loans

Granted $34,259,200 $22,834,452 $38,347,526 $16,066,728

Amount utilized $2,397,709 $22,834,452 $1,439,541 $16,066,728

Unused $31,861,491 $- $36,907,985 $-

Some suppliers request the Company to settle accounts payable by issuance of banker’s acceptance bills, which are

interest free with maturity of three months from date of issuance. The Company is required to deposit with the

banks amounts equal to 40% of the bills amount at the time of issuance and pay bank charges. These deposits will

be used to settle the bills at maturity.

(d) As of June 30, 2013, the above bills payable and bank loans were secured by the following:

(i) Property, plant and machinery with carrying value of $6,472,879 (note 8);

(ii) Land use rights with carrying value of $5,248,255;

(iii) Buildings and land use rights owned by related companies which are controlled by certain of the Company’s

directors;

(iv) Restricted cash of $18,081,581; and

(v) Account receivable of $2,912,574.

During the reporting periods, there was no covenant requirement under the banking facilities granted to the



Company.

(e) Long-term borrowings are repayable as follows:

June 30,
2013

Within one year $ 94,423

After one year but within two years 67,549

$161,972

12. Other loans

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Other loans $202,162 $ 178,438

All other loans are unsecured and repayable on demand. Other loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 2% per month.

13. Warrant liabilities

As of December 30, 2009, the Company completed a private placement of 2,489,370 shares of common stock and five-

year warrants to purchase up to 1,244,368 shares of common stock (“First Batch Warrants”) at an exercise price of

$3.81 per share for gross proceeds of $6,322,952, which includes related issuance expenses of $1,016,290. In

accordance with FASB ASC 815, these warrants are not considered indexed to the Company’s own stock and should be

classified as financial derivative liabilities at fair value for each reporting period. However, the Company considered

the amount to be immaterial to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 as the fair value of First

Batch Warrants was $1,294,142 as of December 31, 2009, thus, the net proceeds were allocated to First Batch Warrants

resulting in the entire amount recorded as equity.

Upon the completion of a private placement as of February 1, 2010, of which five-year warrants to purchase up to

514,933 shares of common stock (“Second Batch Warrants”) were issued to investors and should be classified as

financial derivative liabilities at fair value for each reporting period in accordance with FASB ASC 815, the Company

determined that the aggregate fair value of warrants issued as of February 1, 2010 was material to the financial

statements for the three months ended March 31, 2010. Accordingly, a reallocation was made for the fair value of First

Batch Warrants as of December 31, 2009 amounting to $1,294,142 from the Company’s equity to warrant liabilities as

of February 1, 2010. For the Second Batch Warrants, part of the net proceeds amounting to $561,277, representing the

fair value as of February 1, 2010, was allocated to warrant liabilities at initial recognition.

The fair value of the warrants was calculated using the binomial model. The assumptions that were used to calculate

fair value of First Batch Warrants and Second Batch Warrants, as of June 30, 2013, are as follows:

Expected volatility of 36.21% and 36.23%, respectively



Expected dividend yield of 0%

Risk-free interest rate of 0.389% and 0.399%, respectively

Expected lives of 1.50 years and 1.59 years for First Batch Warrants and Second Batch Warrants, respectively

Exercise price of $3.81 per share

As of June 30, 2013, the fair value of warrant liabilities was nil and no gain or loss on the change in fair value of

warrant liabilities was recognized in the Company’s statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2013.

Warrants issued and outstanding, all of which are exercisable at June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Number of
shares

First Batch Warrants 1,244,368
Second Batch Warrants 514,933

1,759,301

14. Commitments and contingencies

a. Capital commitment

As of June 30, 2013, the Company had no capital commitments in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and

equipment which were contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements.

b. Operating lease commitments

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had non-cancelable operating leases for its retail stores with future minimum lease

payments to be paid are as follows:

Within one year $ 2,039,077
After one year but within two years 1,779,620
After two years but within three years 1,204,813
After three years but within four years 361,940
After four years but within five years 317,121
Thereafter 1,173,899

$ 6,876,470

The rental expense relating to the operating leases was $1,194,447 and $742,167 for the six months ended June 30,

2013 and 2012, respectively.

d. Employment agreements

During the second quarter of 2010, the Company entered into employment agreements with Huitian Tang, the

Company’s Chairman and CEO, and Xiaoyan Zhang, the Company’s CFO. The employment agreements were



approved by the board of directors and the compensation committee. The following is a summary of the material

provisions of the employment agreements for Mr. Tang and Ms. Zhang:

On May 18, 2010, the Company entered into a new employment agreement with Mr. Tang to employ him as CEO for a

term from January 1, 2010 to January 1, 2012, pursuant to which he will be paid RMB 79,600 ($11,600) per month (or

RMB 955,200 ($139,200) per year) and additional share-based compensation based upon its 2010 financial

performance.

In 2011, the Board of Directors authorized and approved to increase Mr. Tang’s annual salary from $139,000 to

$200,000 starting from January 6, 2011. In January 2012, the agreement was extended for an additional two years.

The agreement may be terminated upon mutual agreement between the Company and Mr. Tang in writing. In addition,

the Company shall have the right to unilaterally terminate the agreement under certain circumstances, including among

other things, (i) serious violations of the labor laws or the rules or regulations of the Company; (ii) causing serious

damage to the interests of the Company; or (iii) Mr. Tang is criminally prosecuted under the law.

The Company may also terminate the agreement by serving 30 days’ prior written notice to Mr. Tang or giving Mr.

Tang one month’s salary in lieu of notice in any one of the following circumstances: (i) where Mr. Tang, after

undergoing a legally prescribed period of medical treatment and recuperation for an illness or a non-work-related

injury, remains unable to carry out his job responsibilities; (ii) where Mr. Tang is unable to fulfill the duties of his

position to the standards required under the terms of the agreement; or (iii) where the agreement cannot be performed

due to any major changes of any objective circumstances, which includes, but is not limited to, a merger of the

Company into another business entity, or sale or transfer by the Company of a substantial portion of the assets it owns

to third parties, a material adjustment in operative policy, or a declaration of bankruptcy, dissolution or liquation by the

Company.

Mr. Tang may terminate the agreement during the term upon 30 days prior written notice to the Company. In addition,

Mr. Tang may terminate the agreement in certain circumstances, including if (i) the Company fails to pay the social

insurance premiums for Mr. Tang in accordance with the law; (ii) the Company forces Mr. Tang to work by means of

violence or intimidation; or (iii) the Company fails to pay labor remuneration in full and on time or fails to provide the

labor protection or working conditions as agreed under the agreement.

On May 18, 2010, the Company entered into a new employment agreement with Ms. Zhang to employ her as CFO for a

term from January 1, 2010 to January 1, 2012, pursuant to which we have agreed to pay her HKD70,000 ($9,091) per

month (or HKD840,000 ($109,092) per year) and additional share-based compensation based upon its 2010 financial

performance.

In 2011, the Board of Directors authorized and approved to increase Ms. Zhang’s annual salary from $109,092 to

$160,000 starting from January 6, 2011. In January 2012, the agreement was extended for an additional two years.

The agreement may be terminated upon mutual agreement between the Company and Ms. Zhang in writing. In

addition, the Company shall have right to unilaterally terminate the agreement under certain circumstances, including,

among other things, (i) serious violations of the labor laws or the rules or regulations of the Company; (ii) causing



serious damage to the interests of the Company; or (iii) Ms. Zhang is criminally prosecuted under the law

The Company may terminate the agreement by serving 30 days’ prior written notice to Ms. Zhang or giving Ms. Zhang

one month’s salary in lieu of notice in any one of the following circumstances: (i) where Ms. Zhang, after undergoing a

legally prescribed period of medical treatment and recuperation for an illness or a non-work-related injury, remains

unable to carry out her job responsibilities; (ii) where Ms. Zhang is unable to fulfill the duties of her position to the

standards required under the terms of the agreement; or (iii) where the agreement cannot be performed due to any major

changes of any objective circumstances, which includes, but is not limited to, a merger of the Company into another

business entity, or sale or transfer by the Company of a substantial portion of the assets it owns to third parties, a

material adjustment in operative policy, or a declaration of bankruptcy, dissolution or liquation by the Company.

Ms. Zhang may terminate the agreement during the term upon 30 days prior written notice to the Company. In

addition, Ms. Zhang may terminate the agreement in certain circumstances, including if (i) the Company fails to pay the

social insurance premiums for Ms. Zhang in accordance with the law; (ii) the Company forces Ms. Zhang to work by

means of violence or intimidation; or (iii) the Company fails to pay labor remuneration in full and on time or fails to

provide the labor protection or working conditions as agreed under the agreement

f) Distribution agreements

The Company entered into separate distribution agreements with seven government-owned hospitals, each for a term

ranging from three to five years, pursuant to which the hospitals agreed to further increase our business with them

ranging from 30% to 95% of their respective purchase plans for our drugs. The company agreed to use our best efforts

to fulfill the orders by distributing the drugs under the statutory requirement of the mandated collective tender plan.

We were required to deposit a total of RMB 48,800,000 ($7,717,148) for the security of the distribution

agreement. These hospitals are required to repay the deposit amounts in full when the agreements expire or when

terminated, which may be done only under certain circumstances. During 2013, deposits of RMB 2,000,000

($318,160) were returned to the Company. The Company entered into such agreements to pursue relationships with

these large hospitals in order to achieve a higher share of these customers’ purchases.

For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, net sales from these government-owned hospital customers was

approximately $21,071,000 and $19,623,000, respectively.

15. Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock

On January 18, 2011, the Company entered into a Series A Convertible Preferred Shares Purchase Agreement (the

“Purchase Agreement”) with Milestone Longcheng Limited (“Milestone”) pursuant to which Milestone at February 28,

2011 purchased 9,375,000 shares of the Company’s Series A Convertible Preferred Shares, par value $.001 per share

(the “Preferred Shares”), for an aggregate purchase price of $30,000,000. The Preferred Shares carry a dividend of 5%

and are convertible initially into an equal number of shares of our Common Stock at an initial conversion price of $3.20

per share.

Upon the consummation of a qualified public offering (as defined in the Purchase Agreement) in which the sale price of



the Preferred Shares exceeds the product of 2.0 multiplied by the initial conversion price (as adjusted from time to time

as provided in the Purchase Agreement), without the payment of additional consideration thereof, all the Preferred

Shares shall be automatically converted into Conversion Shares at the then applicable Conversion Rate.

The holders of the Preferred shares may require the Company to redeem all or any portion of the outstanding Preferred

Shares upon the occurrence of certain events, including: (a) any change of control of the Company; (b) any substantial

asset sale; (c) any consolidation or merger or acquisition or sale of voting securities of the Company resulting in the

holders of the issued and outstanding voting securities of the Company immediately prior to such transaction

beneficially owning or controlling less than a majority of the voting securities of the continuing or surviving entity

immediately following such transaction; (d) any tender offer, exchange offer or repurchase offer for any common

shares; (e) cessation of listing of the common shares (or equity securities of an entity that holds all or substantially all

the share capital of the Company) on an internationally recognized exchange; (f) it has been three years since the issue

date; (g) cessation of provision of services by Mr. Huitian Tang to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries by reason of

resignation, discharge, death, disability, retirement or otherwise.

The redemption price to be paid by the Company for such required redemptions shall be equal to an amount necessary

to provide an annual return of fifteen percent (15%) compounded annually on the stated value of the Preferred Shares

for the period commencing on February 28, 2011 and ending on the applicable redemption date. The redemption price

shall take into account and be credited with any dividends paid during such period.

The conversion price shall be subject to adjustment as follows if any of the events listed below occur prior to the

conversion of any Preferred Shares being converted:

(a) In the event the Company pays a dividend or makes a distribution on its common shares in common shares,

subdivides or reclassifies its outstanding common shares into a greater number of shares, or consolidates or

reclassifies its outstanding common shares into a smaller number of shares, the conversion price in effect

immediately prior to such event shall be adjusted so that the holders of the Preferred Shares thereafter

converted shall be entitled to receive the number of common shares of the Company which they would have

owned or have been entitled to receive after the occurrence of such event had the Preferred Shares been

converted immediately prior to the occurrence of such event.

(b) In the event the Company issues common shares, issues rights, options or warrants to subscribe for or purchase

common shares, or issues or sells other rights for common shares or securities whether or not convertible or

exchangeable into common shares for a consideration per share less than the then effective conversion price

on the date the Company issues or sells such securities, then in each such case the conversion price in effect

immediately prior to the issuance of such securities shall be reduced, concurrently with the issue of such

securities, to the price appropriately readjusted.

(c) In the event the Company’s net income after tax under U.S. GAAP, but excluding the effects of extraordinary

gains, and non-cash expenses relating to options and warrants, and qualified public offering related expenses

as and when expensed in the Company’s audited annual financial statements for the twelve-month period

ending December 31, 2011, and prepared on a pro forma basis, is less than US$31,200,000, the conversion

price shall be adjusted, effective on the date of the issuance of the 2011 annual audited financial statements.



(d) In the event the Company distributes to all holders of its common shares any share capital of the Company

(other than common shares) or evidences of indebtedness or cash or other assets (excluding regular cash

dividends or distributions paid from retained earnings of the Company and dividends or distributions referred

to in (a) above) or rights, options or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any of its securities (excluding those

referred to in (b) above) then, in each such case, the conversion price shall be adjusted.

(e) In the event any securities of the Company (other than Preferred Shares) , are amended or otherwise modified

by operation of their terms or otherwise in any manner whatsoever that results in the reduction of the exercise,

conversion or exchange price of such securities payable upon the exercise for, or conversion or exchange into,

common shares or other securities exercisable for, or convertible or exchangeable into, common shares and/or

such securities becoming exercisable for, or convertible or exchangeable into more shares or a greater amount

of such securities which are, in turn exercisable for, or convertible or exchangeable into, common shares, or

more common shares, then such amendment or modification shall be treated as if the securities which have

been amended or modified have been terminated and new securities have been issued with the amended or

modified terms for purposes of Section (b) above.

We classify the Preferred Shares as temporary equity in accordance with ASR 268 (Securities and Exchange

Commission, Financial Reporting Codification, Section No. 211, Redeemable Preferred Stocks) because the Preferred

Shares contain a conditional obligation that may require us, at the option of the holders, to redeem some or all of these

shares by transferring our assets upon the occurrence of certain events that are not solely within the control of the

Company.

The initial fair value of the Preferred Shares was $29,495,866 representing the transaction price of $30,000,000, in

accordance with the FASB ASC 820-10-30-3, less related issue costs of $504,134.

We evaluated the economic characteristics and risks of the conversion feature as an embedded derivative and

determined such economic characteristics and risks are clearly and closely related to the host contract. Therefore, the

conversion feature does not meet the requirements of FASB ASC 815-15-25-1.a. for bifurcation and separate fair value

accounting.

The Company has elected to adjust the carrying amount of the Preferred Shares at each reporting date by applying

periodic accretions, using the interest method, so that the carrying amount will be equal to the possible redemption

amount at the earliest determinable redemption date of February 28, 2014. As of June 30, 2013, such accretion amount

was $2,806,522 resulting in a carrying amount for the Preferred Shares of $35,754,219 at that date.

16. Statutory and other reserves

Under PRC regulations, Liuzhou BCT, BCT Retail, BCT Jian Kang and Hefeng Pharmaceutical may pay dividends

only out of their accumulated profits, if any, determined in accordance with PRC GAAP. In addition, these companies

are required to set aside at least 10% of their after-tax net profits each year, if any, to fund the statutory reserves until

the balance of the reserves reaches 50% of their registered capital. The statutory reserves can be used to make up

cumulative prior year losses and are not distributable in the form of cash dividends.



17. Stock option arrangements

On June 27, 2010, we adopted the China BCT Pharmacy Group, Inc. 2010 Omnibus Securities and Inventive Plan (the

“Plan”) for the benefit of our employees, nonemployee directors and consultants and the employees, nonemployee

directors and consultants of its affiliates, for purposes of assisting us to attract, retain and provide incentives to key

management employees and nonemployee directors, and consultants of ours and our affiliates, and to align the

interests of such individuals with those of our stockholders. Accordingly, the Plan provides for the granting of

distribution equivalent rights, incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, performance share awards,

performance unit awards, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, stock appreciation rights, tandem stock

appreciation rights, unrestricted stock awards or any combination of the foregoing, as may be best suited to the

circumstances of the particular employee, director or consultant as provide in the Plan.

As of June 30, 2012, we have 4,795,000 options that are exercisable or may become exercisable for shares of its

common stock issued and outstanding. The Plan is more fully described in Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements in the Company’s 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

There were no options granted with exercise prices below the market value of the stock at the grant date. All

outstanding options at June 30, 2013 had no intrinsic value because the Company’s stock price was either equal or

lower than all option exercise prices. Fair values were estimated using the Binominal tree option-pricing

model. During the six months ended June 30, 2012, there was no option granted, exercised or forfeited. The weighted

average exercise price of the options is $2.48 as of June 30, 2013. A summary of the Company’s stock options issued

and outstanding as of June 30, 2013, is presented below:

Number of
options Exercise Price

Weighed
Average

Remaining
life

Stock option granted and outstanding 3,660,000 $2.00 9.48

Stock option granted and outstanding 1,120,000 $4.00 7.00

Stock option granted and outstanding 15,000 $5.00 7.14

Total

Exercisable at June 30, 2013 4,795,000 $2.48 8.13

18. Defined contribution plan

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Company is required to make contributions at a rate of 31.4% to

employees’ salaries and wages to a defined contribution retirement plan organized by a state-sponsored social insurance

plan in respect of the retirement benefits for the Company’s employees in the PRC. The only obligation of the

Company with respect to retirement plan is to make the required contributions under the plan. No forfeited contribution

is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years. The defined contribution plan contributions were

charged to the consolidated statements of income. The Company contributed $668,340 and $618,008 for the six months



ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

19. Segment information

The Company uses the “management approach” in determining reportable operating segments. The management

approach considers the internal organization and reporting used by the Company’s chief operating decision maker for

making operating decisions and assessing performance as the source for determining the Company’s reportable

segments. Management, including the chief operating decision maker, reviews operating results solely by monthly

revenue of pharmaceutical distribution, retail pharmacy and manufacturing sectors and operating results of the

Company. The Company has determined that it has three operating segments as defined by FASB ASC 280,

“Segments Reporting” Pharmaceutical distribution, retail pharmacy and manufacturing.

Three Months Ended, Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012

Net sales

Pharmaceutical distribution $ 55,981,459 $ 43,505,861 $ 104,647,696 $ 96,767,659

Retail pharmacy 15,029,019 13,864,014 29,369,847 27,853,992

Manufacturing 3,624,681 3,728,085 7,194,908 7,721,668

$ 74,635,159 $ 61,097,960 $ 141,212,451 $ 132,343,319

Three Months Ended, Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012

Operating income

Pharmaceutical distribution $ 2,955,955 $ 4,649,705 $ 5,640,783 $ 12,526,948

Retail pharmacy 2,956,149 2,749,194 5,037,131 5,225,374

Manufacturing 1,391,410 1,596,813 2,738,679 3,514,913

$ 7,303,514 $ 8,995,712 $ 13,416,593 $ 21,267,235

Three Months Ended, Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Pharmaceutical distribution $ 208,954 $ 183,757 $ 411,344 $ 365,141

Retail pharmacy 351,474 102,041 630,798 179,705

Manufacturing 136,918 123,971 272,140 268,137

$ 697,346 $ 409,769 $ 1,314,282 $ 812,983



June 30, December 31,

2013 2012

Assets

Pharmaceutical distribution $ 237,534,935 $ 203,466,737

Retail pharmacy 40,138,461 18,157,098

Manufacturing 19,977,160 21,044,031

$ 297,650,556 $ 242,667,866

A reconciliation is provided for unallocated amounts relating to corporate operations which is not included in the segment

information.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

2013 2012 2013 2012

Total consolidated revenue $74,635,159 $ 61,097,960 $141,212,451 $132,343,319

Total profit for reportable
segments 7,303,514 8,995,712 13,416,593 21,267,235
Unallocated amounts relating to
operations:

Change in fair value of warrant liabilities - 180,177 - 137,453
Share based compensation (166,007) (166,006) (332,013) (305,446)
Interest income 6 4,127 10 9,559
Other income - 8,003 - 105,532
Other general expenses (229,007) (476,914) (391,949) (631,353)
Finance costs (162) (571) (309) (774)

Income before income taxes $6,908,344 $ 8,544,528 $12,692,332 $ 20,582,206

June 30, December 31,
2013 2012

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Assets
Total assets for reportable segments $297,650,556 $

242,667,866
Cash and cash equivalents 1,734,620 2,304,696

$299,385,176 $ 244,972,562

All of the Company’s long-lived assets and revenues classified based on the customers are located in the PRC.

21. Subsequent events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the filing date of this Quarterly Report and has determined that

there were no other subsequent events to recognize or disclose in these financial statements.


